
Coral Springs 

Improvement District 

 

Agenda 

 

April 18, 2016 

Agenda Page 1



Agenda Page 2



Agenda Page 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES  

Agenda Page 4



   

Unapproved Minutes 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

 A regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement District 

was held on Monday, March 21, 2016 at 4:05 p.m. at the District Office, 10300 NW 11th Manor, 

Coral Springs, Florida.   

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 

  

 Martin Shank President  

 Duane Holland  Vice President  

 Nick St. Cavish Secretary 

     

 Also present were: 

  

 Kenneth Cassel District Manager  

 William Capko  District Counsel 

 Dan Daly  Director of Operations 

 Troy Lynn District Engineer 

 Rick Olsen Globaltech 

 David McIntosh Director of Utilities 

 Kay Holmes  District Accountant  

 Joe Stephens   Water Department 

 Curt Dwiggins Field Superintendent  

 Tim Martin  Wastewater Department 

 Randy Frederick Drainage Department 

 John McKune  District Consultant 

 Rhonda Mossing MBS Capital Markets, LLC   

  

 The following is a summary of the minutes and actions taken during the March 21, 2016 

CSID Board of Supervisors Meeting.  

    

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Cassel called the meeting to order and called the roll. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the February 

22, 2016 Meeting 

Mr. Shank stated each Board member received a copy of the minutes of the February 22, 

2016 meeting and requested any corrections, additions or deletions. 

There being none, 

  

Agenda Page 5



March 21, 2016  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 2 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor the minutes of the February 22, 2016 meeting were 

approved. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Presentation by MBS Capital Markets, 

LLC – Rhonda Mossing 

 Ms. Mossing provided the Board with a presentation of the District’s outstanding bonds 

and possible refunding options.  A copy of the presentation is attached hereto and made a part of 

the public record. 

 Ms. Mossing will proceed by looking into private placement refunding and come back to 

the Board with a recommendation.   

  

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Contract with Trio 

Development Corporation for Lift Station 

#20 Repairs, Piggybacking Off of 

Broward County Contract 

  This item was tabled.  

  

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Bids for GF 2016-03 – 

Pump Conversion 

  Mr. Frederick reviewed the only bid submitted, which is from FPI Pumps, Inc.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor the pump conversion bid GF-2016-03 was awarded to FPI 

Pumps, Inc. for a total cost not to exceed $49,868. 

  

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Work Authorizations  

 A. Work Authorization #102.3 for Canal Bank Stabilization for a Total 

Decrease of $93,633.08 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor Work Authorization #102.3 was approved.   

  

 B. Work Authorization #113 for Restoration of Canal Banks at Site 1A for a 

Total Cost of $1,316,747 

 Mr. Olsen reviewed work associated with Work Authorization #113 for a total cost of 

$1,316,747. 

 

Agenda Page 6



March 21, 2016  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 3 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor Work Authorization #113 was approved. 

  

 C. Work Authorization #101.1 for Wells 4&7 Construction at a Decrease of 

$6,694.20 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor Work Authorization #101.1 was approved.   

  

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Continuation of GIS 

Consulting Services with Florida 

Technical Consultants 

 Mr. Daly reviewed the continuation contract with Florida Technical Consultants for GIS 

consulting services at a total cost of $3,840. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor the continuation contract with Florida Technical 

Consultants for GIS consulting services at a cost of $3,840 was 

approved.   

  

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

A. Manager – Ken Cassel 

 Mr. Cassel reminded the Board of the workshop scheduled for March 22, 2016 at 9:00 

a.m. to review revisions to the Permit Criteria Manual.  He also reported each Department Head 

will provide a cover memorandum for agenda items to be considered by the Board going 

forward.   

 

 B. Engineer – Troy Lyn (Report Included) 

 Discussion of Site 1A Contractor Proposals 

 Consideration of Job Estimate for High Service Pump #6 
 Mr. Lyn reviewed the Project Status Report, a copy of which is attached hereto and made 

a part of the public record. 

 The frame for High Service Pump #6 is in poor condition and unusable.  A job 

estimate was provided for a new frame at a total cost of $7,894.77. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor the job estimate for a new frame for High Service Pump 

#6 was approved at a total cost of $7,894.77. 

  

Agenda Page 7



March 21, 2016  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 4 

 Mr. Olsen reported he met with the three property owners impacted by the 

erosion at Site #9.  The field work, including the survey and geotechnical 

investigation were completed.  The dive inspection will be conducted 

tomorrow morning.   

 Mr. Daly discussed the reuse report.   

 

 C. Department Reports 

 Operations – Dan Daly 

 Utility Billing Work Orders 

 This item is for informational purposes only. 

 

 Utilities Update (David McIntosh) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

 

 Water – Joe Stephens (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

 

 Wastewater – Tim Martin (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

 

 Stormwater – Randy Frederick (Report Included) 
 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

 

 Field – Curt Dwiggins (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

   

 Human Resources – Jan Zilmer 

 There being nothing to report, the next item followed. 

 

 Motion to Accept Department Reports 
   

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor the department reports were accepted.   

 

Agenda Page 8



March 21, 2016  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 5 

D. Attorney  

 Mr. Capko reported the following: 

 Senate Bill 516, which would have been detrimental to special districts, did not make 

it to the House Floor or Senate Floor.   

 House Bill 479 passed.  It revises some of the website requirements.  He will provide 

a memorandum to the Board and staff.   

 House Bill 273 passed.  It requires vendors and contractors to include specific 

language in their contracts with the name of the public record custodian.   

 He contacted the City Attorney the end of last week regarding the settlement 

agreement and check that had not been received by the District.  Mr. Hearn assured 

the agreement and check was being mailed out directly to Mr. Capko.   

 Mr. Shank requested District Counsel write something explaining what authority the 

City has over the District.   

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Financial Statements for 

February 2016 

 Ms. Holmes reviewed the financial statements. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor the financials were approved.   

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisors’ Request 

 Mr. Shank discussed the following: 

 He provided Mr. Daly information regarding a butterfly garden.  Mr. Daly indicated 

Mr. Dwiggins is working on obtaining quotes.   

 He provided an overview of meetings he had with Mayor Campbell, City Manager 

Dönmez, Commissioner Carter and Vice Mayor Daley.  Mr. Dönmez prefers the 

District contact Mr. Rich Michaud, Director of Public Works, directly.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 9



March 21, 2016  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 6 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 There being no further business, 

  

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor the meeting adjourned.   

 

 

 

     

Kenneth Cassel   Martin Shank 

Assistant Secretary    President  

Agenda Page 10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fourth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 11



I 

 
PERMIT CRITERIA MANUAL 

 

 

 

 

FOR PROJECTS WITHIN 
CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

Revised January 2016   
 
 

Prepared By: 

 

and 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 12



II 

 

 
Table of Contents 

   Page 
Purpose 1 
Background 1 
Policy of the District in Considering and Issuing Permits ......................................................... 2 
Permits [Licenses] ..................................................................................................................... 4 

Duration ................................................................................................................ 4 
Emergency Permit ................................................................................................. 4 
Modifications or Relocations to Works Under Permit ............................................. 4 
Transfer of a Permit............................................................................................... 5 
Application for Permit ........................................................................................... 5 
Application Requirements ..................................................................................... 5 
Initial Submittal ..................................................................................................... 5 
Final Submittal ...................................................................................................... 5 
Preparation of the Drawing or Plans ...................................................................... 6 
Standard Conditions .............................................................................................. 6 

Permit Requirements ................................................................................................................ 8 
Right-of-Way Permits ............................................................................................ 8 
Bridge Crossing ...................................................................................................... 8 
Culvert Connections .............................................................................................. 8 
Culvert Crossings ................................................................................................... 9 
Drainage Pump Connections .................................................................................. 9 
Open Channel Connections .................................................................................... 9 
Right-of-Way Beautification/Grading ..................................................................... 9 
Utility Crossing ...................................................................................................... 9 
Seawalls, Bulkheads ............................................................................................ 10 
Fences 10 
Irrigation Withdrawal Facilities ............................................................................ 10 

Surface Water Management Permits ..................................................................................... 12 
Storm Water Management Criteria ........................................................................................ 12 

General Requirements ......................................................................................... 13 
Allowable Discharge ............................................................................................ 13 
Additional Requirements ..................................................................................... 13 
Retention/Detention Criteria ............................................................................... 13 
Pretreatment criteria .......................................................................................... 13 
Underground Exfiltration Systems ....................................................................... 14 

Agenda Page 13



III 

Construction ....................................................................................................... 14 
Discharge structures ............................................................................................ 14 
Control Devices/Bleed-Down Mechanisms for Detention Systems ....................... 14 
Dry Retention/Detention areas ........................................................................... 14 
Exfiltration systems ............................................................................................. 14 
Water Bodies – (See Exhibit 2) ............................................................................. 15 
Impervious Areas ................................................................................................ 15 
Design Information .............................................................................................. 15 
Surface Storage ................................................................................................... 15 
Minimum Road Crown and Finished Floor Elevations ........................................... 15 
Basic Criteria - East basin ..................................................................................... 16 
Water Quality Treatment .................................................................................... 16 
Flood Plain Storage.............................................................................................. 16 
Basic Criteria - West basin ................................................................................... 18 
Water Quality Treatment .................................................................................... 18 
Flood Plain Storage.............................................................................................. 18 
Redevelopment Criteria for Commercial, Institutional, and Multifamily Projects .. 20 
Road Rights of Way ............................................................................................. 21 

Supporting Information .......................................................................................................... 23 
Rainfall ................................................................................................................ 23 
Soil Storage ......................................................................................................... 23 
Infiltration and Percolation .................................................................................. 23 
Runoff 24 
Datum 24 

Exhibit 1 - Bridge Crossing Criteria.......................................................................................... 25 
Exhibit 2 - Surface Water Management Data ......................................................................... 26 
Exhibit 3 - Application for Permit ............................................................................................ 27 
Exhibit 4 - Typical Canal Cross Section .................................................................................... 31 
Exhibit 5 - Typical Project Cross Section ................................................................................. 33 
Exhibit 6 - District Map............................................................................................................ 35 
Exhibit 7 - Permit Fee Schedule .............................................................................................. 37 
 

Agenda Page 14



1 

Purpose 

The purpose of this document is to set forth the information, procedures and requirements for 
preparing an application and obtaining permits from the Coral Springs Improvement District for 
the construction of water, sanitary sewer, or storm water management (drainage) systems 
regardless of size or ownership within the Coral Springs Improvement District   

Storm Water Permits 

Permits from the Coral Springs Improvement District are required for the construction and 
operation of any and all storm water management systems within the boundaries of the District 
regardless of size.  Projects greater than 40 acres in size and those identified by the District's 
engineer are also required to obtain approval from the South Florida Water Management 
District.   

The second type of permit is to authorize work within district rights of way and/or crossing 
district facilities such as water, sewer or reclaimed water lines regardless of their location.   

 

The third type of permit pertains to the installation of water and sewer facilities.   

 

Issuance of a District permit does not relieve the permittee from any obligation to obtain 
appropriate Federal, State, Regional and Local approvals/permits. Permits do not convey any 
property rights or privileges other than those specified in the permit; it does not authorize any 
injury to private property or invasion of private rights, nor does it waive the governing 
requirements of any other agency or authority.  Permits simply express the consent of the 
District insofar as concerns the public’s interest and protection 

 

Background 

The Coral Springs Improvement District (District) was created in 1965 by a special act of the 
Florida Legislature as a Drainage District.  To better serve the new City of Coral Springs, the 
Coral Springs Drainage District was converted in 1970 to an Improvement District.  By 1977 
Coral Ridge Properties had completed the master planning of Coral Springs and the Coral 
Springs Improvement District was able to complete their storm water modeling and submit 
permits to the Central and South Florida Flood Control District (the predecessor to the South 
Florida Water Management District - SFWMD) governing the storm water management for all 
lands within the Coral Springs Improvement District.   

Agenda Page 15



2 

The 1977 permit identified two distinct basins within the District, each served by 3 - 50,000 
GPM pumps discharging to the C-14 Canal.  The 1977 permit also set limits on impervious area 
and required specific amounts of surface storage for each acre of property in the district.  
Unfortunately a number of developments did not comply with the criteria and discharge storm 
water runoff without providing sufficient floodplain storage or water quality treatment.  Thus 
increasing the risk of flooding and allowing heavy metals, hydrocarbons, particulates, nutrients, 
litter and debris to enter our waterways.   

 

The objectives of these regulations are to: 

• Protect and preserve our freshwater resources by improving water quality and reducing 
the need to pump storm water beyond the boundaries of the Coral Springs 
Improvement District.   

• Improve flood protection by requiring all properties within the District to provide the 
amounts of surface storage specified for each basin   

• Improve water quality in the District’s canals by requiring all properties within the 
District to comply with water quality treatment requirements. 

• Help ensure the continued function of storm water management systems by requiring 
periodic maintenance, inspections and certifications of systems regardless of their past 
permitting history.   

• Encourage responsible renovation and redevelopment of properties. 
• Reduce the discharge of hydrocarbons, heavy metals, sediment, litter and debris to 

District facilities by requiring [owners of] roadways to comply with water quality and 
storage requirements.   

• Reduce the discharge of sediment, litter and debris into District facilities by requiring 
projects comply with the EPA’s NPDES program for construction activities, provide and 
follow an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan.   

• Reduce runoff to district facilities by increasing available storage 
 

Policy of the District in Considering and Issuing 
Permits 

1. No Right of Way (R/W) permits will be granted for any use of a District works that will 
adversely affect such works, construction activities, or degrade the quality of District waters 

2. No R/W permit will be granted for any use of District’s works when granting such would be 
inconsistent with the water control plan of the District.   

3. A surface water management (SWM) permit will not be granted for any proposed surface 
water management system which is inconsistent with the South Florida Water Management 
District Surface Water Management Permit issued for the Coral Springs Improvement 

Agenda Page 16



3 

District.  The District reserves the right to require any applicant to obtain approval/permit 
from SFWMD for projects less than 40 acres.   

4. Water use permits must be obtained prior to the start of construction from the South 
Florida Water Management District for construction dewatering and irrigation.  A copy of 
this permit must be provided to the District prior to the start of construction.  Discharge of 
effluent from construction dewatering activities is prohibited unless specifically permitted. 

5. Erosion Control measures must be incorporated into all projects regardless of size.  For 
projects triggering NPDES compliance a copy of the permit be provided to the District prior 
to the start of construction.   

6. The Districts reserve the right to:  
a. Change, regulate and limit discharges into or withdrawals from District works.   
b. Amend or change any of its policies, practices, procedures or regulations, and such 

action shall not constitute any claim for damages nor become the basis of a legal suit 
by any permittee.   

c. Enter any property containing a storm water management system to verify 
compliance with the storm water management license and ensure the safe and 
effective operation of the storm water management system.   

7. The District shall require an inspection report at least every five years from permit issuance 
date, certified by a Florida professional engineer that the storm water management system 
is operating as permitted by the District.  In addition the entity will state in the report what 
operational maintenance has been performed on the system.  

 

Agenda Page 17



4 

Permits [Licenses] 

A STORM WATER MANAGMENT PERMIT [LICENSE], as issued by the Coral Springs Improvement 
District, is simply an acknowledgement that the proposed surface water management system 
or the specific use of Public land, as requested by the Applicant, conforms to the requirements 
and standards of the District. Permits convey no property rights nor any other rights or 
privileges other than those specified in the permit. 

A GENERAL PERMIT, as issued by the Coral Springs Improvement District is an acknowledgment 
that proposed construction over, across, under or parallel to District owned facilities conform 
to accepted engineering practice for the separation of systems, protection of existing utilities 
and the continued ability of the District to access and maintain district facilities.   

A RIGHT OF WAY PERMIT, as issued by the Coral Springs Improvement District authorizes the 
installation of components on or within District Property.   

The issuance of permits can be expedited if contact with the District is made prior to the 
submission of a formal application. The design water surface elevations and other pertinent 
data will be furnished upon request for any desired location. Applications which are based on 
the correct design data from the District are processed with a minimum of delay. 

Hereafter, Works is defined to include (but not limited to) all water management facilities, 
lakes, canals, outfall structures, outfall pipes, exfiltration trenches, easements, district right of 
way and canal interconnect piping.   

Duration 
Construction of works authorized by Permits must commence within 2 years of permit issuance.  
unless construction has commenced and must be completed within 12 months of 
commencement.  Expiring/expired permits may be extended by additional board action.      

Emergency Permit 
A letter of authorization for emergency use of the District’s facilities or for permission to initiate 
construction of a SWM system can be obtained prior to the issuance of a permit if the delay of 
normal permit procedure would cause extreme hardship or endanger lives or property. 

Modifications or Relocations to Works Under Permit 
Changes occurring before the system has been certified by the engineer and placed into 
operation and not affecting the amount of storage, water quality treatment, or increasing the 
amount of building or impervious coverage require can be made after submitting a letter and 
supporting documents (3 sets signed and sealed and 1 PDF) detailing the requested changes to 
the District.  Changes affecting the amount of storage, amount of water quality treatment or 
changes to the building or impervious coverage may require approval of the Board of 

Agenda Page 18



5 

Supervisors.  Modifications occurring after a system has been placed into operation must follow 
the same procedure for new permits.   

Transfer of a Permit 
In general permits run with the land and are automatically transferred to the new owner.  
Changes to procedure may be requested in writing.   

Application for Permit 
Permit applications may be submitted in person, electronically (initial submittals only) or 
delivered to:  

Coral Spring Improvement District  

c/o Severn Trent Services 

210 N. University Drive, Suite 702 

Coral Springs, FL 33071 

Application Requirements 
Applications are to include the following. 

Initial Submittal  
One paper and one PDF set of plans (scalable), calculations, details, specifications prepared by a 
civil engineer, along with geotechnical evaluations, reports, survey (referencing NAVD 1988), 
site plan, landscape plan, floor plan, and any other supporting documents.  Permit application 
fees shall be in accordance with the current District fee schedule.  In addition the applicant 
agrees to pay the costs of outside consulting services (including but not limited to engineering 
services, accounting services and legal services) at the rates charged by such consultants and 
any other costs and expenses incurred by the District in order to review applications.   

Final Submittal 
For consideration by the Board of Supervisors the applicant must address all comments and 
provide at a minimum PDF’s of all submitted documents along with 4 sets of signed and sealed 
engineering plans, calculations, reports, surveys, etc.  

 

Instructions for preparing an application are as follows: 

 

Item (1) - Simply state what use is intended, i.e., bridge crossing, culvert connection, 
beautification of right-of-way, surface water management system construction, etc. 

Item (2) - Self-explanatory (information can be obtained from your deed or tax notice). 

Agenda Page 19



6 

Item (3) - Refers to work involved (i.e., District Canal Name). 

Item (4) - The person or entity responsible for maintenance of facilities after construction 
is completed. 

Item (5) - The applicant may be an agent of the owner (i.e., contractor or engineer) to 
which correspondence will be directed during the application process.  A letter of authorization 
from the owner may be required by the District. 

Item (6) - Of minor importance when not affecting water control.  If a bridge is to provide 
access to owner’s property – so state.  This information must be completed for culvert and/or 
pump installations giving capacities as well as acreage being drained or irrigated. 

Preparation of the Drawing or Plans 
Four (4) sets of supporting documents are required, one set will be returned with the approved 
permit. Drawings should be to scale and adequately dimensioned.  Drawings need to show 
existing conditions such as structures elevations, trees, underground and overhead utilities, 
along with the proposed work in sufficient detail to verify compliance with permit criteria.  
Information typically provided includes: location map, paving grading and grading plan, details 
and specifications, water quality and storage calculations.     

For activities within the District rights-of-way, easements, or crossing District owned water, 
sewer, or drainage components, a plan and cross section or elevation view of the proposed 
construction relative to District owned facilities must be shown.  Elevations of key components 
shall be expressed in North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD).  Minimum clearances, 
cover, and separation between components must also be indicated on the drawings.  Projects 
abutting district owned facilities are required to provide cross sections at 50 ft. intervals.   

Standard Conditions  
All permits issued will contain the following standard conditions 

1. In the event the DISTRICT wishes to obtain the ingress or egress to its property, 
easement or right of way affected by the permit issued pursuant to this application for 
any lawful District purpose, including but not limited to maintenance of any lake, canal 
or related water management infrastructure, the removal, demolition and 
reconstruction, if any, of the proposed work or structure permitted hereunder shall be 
at the sole expense of the owner or the owner’s successors or assigns. 

2. PERMITTEE, by acceptance of the permit, covenants and agrees that the DISTRICT, 
District Managers, district consultants and its successors shall be promptly indemnified, 
defended, protected, exonerated, and saved harmless by the Permittee from and 
against all expenses, liabilities, claims, demands, and proceedings incurred by or 
imposed on said District in connection with any claim, proceeding, demand, 
administrative hearing, suit, appellate proceeding, or other activity; including 
unfounded or "nuisance" claims, in which the District may become involved, or any 

Agenda Page 20



7 

settlement thereof, arising out of any operations under this permit, including use of 
canal water for irrigation purposes, damage to landscaping, paint damage to 
automobiles, buildings, or other structures, and any property damage or personal 
injuries, fatal or non-fatal, of any kind or character. 

3. PERMITTEE agrees that no debris will be placed into the waterways of the District. 

 For this purpose the PERMITTEE has submitted a check in the amount of Two-Thousand 
Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) which PERMITTEE  agrees to forfeit if debris is found to 
have been placed into the District’s waterways; said determination to be at the sole 
discretion of the District and is acknowledged by PERMITTEE to represent both actual 
and punitive damages for violating the provisions of this permit and, further, the 
provisions of Chapter 298, Florida Statutes. 

 If construction of the facilities called for in this permit have not been completed, an 
additional Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) will be submitted by 
PERMITTEE to cover future occurrences of discharging builder debris into the District’s 
waterways.  

4. Applicant agrees to maintain the system in accordance with permit documents and to 
recertify the function, condition and operation of the system according to the District’s 
schedule and submit “Storm water Inspection Reports” and shall comply with all re-
inspection procedures required under the District’s policies. 

5. Applicant agrees to maintain adjacent canal/lake banks in accordance with the specified 
cross section, maintain permitted vegetation to the water’s edge and keep the canal 
bank free and clear of trash and debris.   

6. Permittee agrees to correct any shoaling or erosion of district facilities resulting from 
the installation of components authorized by the permit.   

7. Applicant agrees to remove vegetation, other than grass or approved ground cover 
within 20 ft. of the edge of water or within adjacent district rights of way (and process 
permits for tree removal through the City of Coral Springs).  The removal, mitigation, 
and permitting shall be performed by the applicant at their own cost.   

8. Abide by the terms and conditions of the permit. 

9.  To maintain works or structures in a good and safe condition. 

10. To allow inspection at any time by the District of any works or structure established 
upon permit. 

11. To prevent the discharge of debris and/or aquatic weeds into any District works. 

12. To maintain the water quality of all waters discharging into District works. 

13. To conform with any alterations of or amendments to this manual, or those imposed by 
the DEP, SFWMD or EPA that may be deemed necessary by the District. 

Agenda Page 21



8 

14.  To make any immediate changes or repairs as requested by District personnel to insure 
the safe operation of the District’s waterways during storm events. 

15.  Restore abutting lake/canal banks to the design cross section of 4 Horizontal: 1 Vertical 
to 2 ft. below the control elevation. 

16. Upon completion of the construction specified in the permit, the applicant shall submit 
to the District 3 as-built surveys and electronic media certified by a professional 
engineer, in a format generally compatible with the requirements of other storm water 
management jurisdictions.   

17. Acknowledges that failure to maintain the system, comply with re-certification 
requirements, or performing construction with District authorization may result in the 
restriction or elimination of storm water discharges to District facilities.   

18. Permittee agrees not to occupy or make beneficial use of the permit property until the 
improvements and conditions of approval identified in the permit are completed, 
certified, and released by the district.   

Permit Requirements 

Right-of-Way Permits 
Bridge Crossing 
Bridges constructed over the canals within the boundaries of the District require crossings 
having a 15-foot horizontal clearance between center bents, a minimum vertical clearance of 
6 feet between low member and normal water elevation or 1 foot above the 100-year, 3-day 
storm elevation, whichever is greater (See Table I). The District reserves the right to determine 
which of the two elevations will be the control in establishment of the required vertical 
clearance. 

Bents and bridge piers are required to be so located that they will not catch debris or interfere 
with the normal flow of water. Pilings should be placed parallel to the major axis of the canal 
and protected in order that future cleanout under the bridge can be accomplished. Details of 
fencing at crossings, headwalls, wing walls and other special items, will vary from site to site 
depending on soil conditions and other factors. 

Culvert Connections 
The connection to District canals or levees is usually accomplished by means of culverts.  
Culverts size, diameter and type vary with the requirements for each connection. The diameter 
of the culvert must be such that the purpose of the installation will be adequately and properly 
served under maximum conditions. The culvert crown shall be 2 feet below basin control 
elevation (See Table II) wherever possible. 

Agenda Page 22



9 

All trenches within the District right-of-way shall be backfilled and compacted to a dry density 
equal to  100%  of the maximum density as determined by AASHTO T-99. 

Silt screens or turbidity curtains shall be installed upstream and downstream of the proposed 
construction. Screens or curtains shall remain in place until construction is complete and 
turbidity levels have returned to normal. 

Culvert Crossings 
Culvert crossings shall be designed to minimize head losses.  It is the applicant’s responsibility 
to demonstrate that the head loss for the proposed culvert do not exceed that of the canal 
section being replaced.  Culvert crossing shall not decrease the available storage at either the 
10 or 100 year flood elevations.   

Drainage Pump Connections 
To ensure equitable allocation of storage and discharge capacity the use of pumps is prohibited.   

Open Channel Connections 
Open channel connections to  District canals will be considered on a case by case basis.  
Overland flow directly to District facilities is prohibited.   

Any provisions needed to protect the District channel and berm from erosion or shoaling shall 
be made at the time of excavation. 

Under no conditions, directly or indirectly, will the discharging of aquatic weeds, raw sewage, 
garbage, or debris of any nature, into a District channel be tolerated. Such action will constitute 
grounds for the cancellation of the permit. Any discharge of water with a quality less than any 
State agency water quality standard will constitute grounds for the cancellation of the permit.   

Right-of-Way Beautification/Grading 
Grass and approved ground covers are permitted within the District’s right-of-way and 
easement, with the understanding that such improvements are made at the risk and peril of the 
permittee and are subject to prompt removal by permittee at his expense upon notification by 
the District. Should the owner/permittee fail to remove such improvements, the District may 
remove or otherwise destroy the same without liability or responsibility. 

Altering the grade or slope of any canal to other than the specified section will be considered 
on a case by case basis.  Any deviation from the standard section must be supported by an 
engineering justification.   

A typical minimum section is shown in Exhibit 2. 

Utility Crossing 
Overhead Crossings 
Overhead power and telephone line crossings must have a minimum vertical clearance of forty 
(40) feet between low wire elevation and elevation of the berm or natural ground, whichever is 
greater. 

Agenda Page 23



10 

When such installations cross District levees, a minimum clearance of 25 feet between low wire 
elevation and top of the levee will be required. 

Overwater Crossings 
When such construction is supported on pilings, the required clearance (both horizontal and 
vertical) for bridge crossings are in effect. 

Should installation be made adjacent to an existing bridge, piling will be aligned with the bridge 
piling, so that a minimum of obstruction to the flow of water by accumulation of debris is 
assured. 

Subaqueous Crossings 
Subaqueous crossings of any nature, such as cables, water or fuel (gas) lines, etc., shall be laid 
to a predetermined depth and cross-section that will provide for two (2) foot cover below the 
design bottom elevation. This depth and section will be furnished by the District for each 
crossing. Should conditions warrant the laying of a cable on the bottom of the channel, such is 
done so at the permittee’s risk. 

Below Grade Crossings 
Underground crossings of District owned facilities (water, sewer, drainage culverts, rights of 
way) by any other utility, company or entity shall provide sufficient clearance to ensure the safe 
and continued operation and future maintenance of District facilities.  The minimum acceptable 
clearances between district facilities and any other installation shall be 5 ft. horizontal and 18 
inches vertical.  This clearance shall be depicted on plans provided to the District a minimum of 
4 weeks prior to the start of construction.  The actual clearance shall be confirmed and depicted 
on as-built drawings prepared by a registered surveyor and provided to the district.     

Seawalls, Bulkheads 
In lieu of providing a 4:1 slope to 2 ft. below the water table, the applicant may construct sea 
walls, or bulkheads provided compensation for lost littoral areas is made.  Each application will 
be judged on its merits and must meet the requirements of the specific location.   

Fences 
To be considered by the Board, any fence encroachment must be in accordance with the City’s 
Fence Code, is subject to an encroachment agreement and subject to Board approval.   

Irrigation Withdrawal Facilities 
The use of ground or surface water is regulated by the South Florida Water Management 
District.   The Coral Springs Improvement District only regulates the installation of lines within 
District Rights of Ways and easements.  Irrigation supply lines within district rights of way are 
required to have a minimum 2 ft. cover and shall have an inlet at least 6 inches below the basin 
control elevation.  A copy of the SFWMD water use permit must be provided before water 
withdrawals are commenced.  Pumps are not allowed to be located on District rights-of-way. 

The permittee shall notify the District at least 60 days prior to intended operation of irrigation 
facilities. The following information shall be supplied to the District: 

Agenda Page 24



11 

1. Permittee’s name and address 
2. Date withdrawal will begin 
3. Source of supply 
4. Estimated quantity to be withdrawn per day 
5. Land use being served 
6. Location of points of withdrawal 
7. Number and size of pumps 
8. A Copy of the SFWMD water use permit.   

 

Permits for withdrawals must first apply to the SFWMD for a Consumptive Use Permit under 
FAC Chapter 40E-2. 

  

Agenda Page 25



12 

Surface Water Management Permits 

The following criteria is to be used for design of water management facilities for projects  
within the Coral Springs Improvement District  Surface Water Management permit applications 
will be reviewed according to these criteria.  Permits from the Coral Springs Improvement 
District for projects less than 40 acres are issued in lieu of a General Surface Water 
Management Permit under Chapter 40E-40 of the Rules of the South Florida Water 
Management District unless otherwise instructed by the District.  permit from the South Florida 
Water Management District for. All of the criteria stated in Chapter 40E-40 must be complied 
with as part of this permitting process.  

Projects larger than 40 acres require approval of BOTH the Coral Springs Improvement District 
(DISTRICT) and the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD).   

The District review and permitting process for projects does not obviate the need for each 
project to obtain approval from the City of Coral Springs Engineering Department or any other 
applicable regulatory agencies. The District’s review will be limited to the water management 
aspects of each project.  

All criteria outlined in Chapter 40E-40 of the Rules of the South Florida Water Management 
District shall be enforced as part of the District permit process. 

The Coral Springs Improvement District operates its surface water management system under 
SFWMD Permit No. 06-00119-S issued August 11, 1977.  

 

Storm Water Management Criteria 

Storage, water quality and quantity calculations supporting the 1977 SFWMD drainage permit 
accounted for future development by assuming limits on impervious areas based on the future 
land use designation.  The maximum percent impervious established in the 1977 calculations 
area as follows: 

Parks       2%  
Public Facilities    80% 
Commercial Uses    75%  
High Density Residential   75% 
Medium Density Residential  40%, and  
Low Density Residential   25% 
 

Agenda Page 26



13 

Individual projects may exceed the impervious areas listed above but will need to provide 
additional water quality treatment and quantity attenuation to offset the additional impacts. 

General Requirements 
All projects within the Coral Springs Improvement District are required to comply with the 
standards for water quality treatment and storage of storm water runoff, regardless of their 
ownership, age, or use.  All storm water management systems are required to incorporate 
maintenance sumps on structures or other mechanisms to remove sediments and mechanisms 
for the removal of hydrocarbons and lighter constituents in storm water prior to discharge off-
site or to district facilities.  Systems located within designated well field protection zones must 
comply with the additional measures established by Broward County. All projects shall be 
designed so that discharges will meet State water quality standards, as set forth in Florida 
Administrative Code.   

Allowable Discharge 
The SFWMD permit allows the District to pump 150,000 gallons per minute per basin to the C-
14 Canal.  Individual parcels are not required to restrict discharge to CSID canals except where 
necessary to provide water quality treatment and for those projects unable to comply with 
required surface storage.   

Except for systems utilizing exfiltration trench (in which case no discharge below the top of pipe 
is permitted) Discharge control structures for individual projects (when required for 
retention/detention) will provide a mechanism for returning the on-site water surface elevation 
to the basin control elevation (See Table II).  This mechanism shall consist of one 3” diameter 
circular bleeder located one foot below the control elevation, unless calculations demonstrate a 
larger bleer is required to restore the water table within 72 hours.   

Discharge structures must satisfy the requirements of this manual pertaining to Right-of-Way 
permits. Before discharging to District facilities, storm water shall be directed through a 
pollution retardant structure. 

Additional Requirements 
State Standards  
Projects shall be designed so that discharges will meet State water quality standards, as set 
forth in Florida Administrative Code. 

Retention/Detention Criteria 
Retention and/or detention in the overall system, including swales, lakes, canals, greenways, 
etc., shall be provided for as required by the current SFWMD “Basis of Review”.   

Pretreatment criteria  
Projects within a Well Field Protection Zone 3 and having greater than 40% impervious area are 
required to provide ½” of dry pretreatment along.  Projects other than single family 

Agenda Page 27



14 

developments are also required to provide 1/2” of dry pretreatment regardless of their 
location.   

Underground Exfiltration Systems 
If an underground exfiltration system is to be used towards meeting retention/detention 
requirements, refer to SFWMD “Basis of Review” Vol. IV, current edition.  The first hour of 
storage and exfiltration from a trench may be used towards meeting the storage requirements 
for the 10 year storm.   

Construction 
Discharge structures 
All design discharges shall be made through structural discharge facilities.  

Discharge structures shall include a “baffle” system to encourage discharge from the center of 
the water column rather than the top or bottom. 

The control structure overflow design shall be based on tail water control using the 10-year 
design elevations listed in Table II. 

Control Devices/Bleed-Down Mechanisms for Detention Systems 
Gravity control devices shall normally be sized based on a design discharge 0.5 inch of the 
detention volume in one day.  Bleed down devices shall consist of one 3” diameter circular 
bleeder, unless calculations demonstrate a different size is needed to restore the on-site water 
table to the basin control elevation within 72 hours.  The invert of the bleed down device shall 
be set one foot below the basin control elevation.  Systems utilizing exfiltration trench are 
prohibited from discharging at an elevation below the crown of the pipe.   

Dry Retention/Detention areas 
Dry retention/detention areas shall have mechanisms for returning the groundwater level in 
the area to the control elevation. 

The design of dry retention/detention areas shall incorporate considerations for regular 
maintenance and vegetation harvesting procedures. 

Dry systems are designed with the lowest elevation not lower than one foot above the basin 
control elevation.   

Exfiltration systems 
Pipe diameter – 15 inches minimum. 

Trench width – 3 foot minimum. 

Rock in trench must be fully enclosed in filter material 

Maintenance sumps of at least 12 inches are required.   

Agenda Page 28



15 

To qualify as a dry system, the invert of all slotted or perforated pipes must be at or above the 
basin control elevation.   

Exfiltration trenches within Well field Protection Zones must also comply with the criteria for 
Well fields established by Broward County.   

Water Bodies – (See Exhibit 2)  
New water bodies shall comply with the more stringent of 1) dimensional criteria established by 
the SFWMD in their “Basis of Review” Vol. IV or 2) dimensions shown in Exhibit 2. 

Existing water bodies may not be filled or reduced in size or capacity without providing 
compensating storage elsewhere in the district.   

Impervious Areas 
Runoff shall be discharged from impervious surfaces through retention areas, detention 
devices, filtering and cleansing devices, and/or subjected to some type of Best Management 
Practice (BMP) prior to discharge from the project site.  Projects which include substantial 
paved areas, such as shopping centers, large highway intersections with frequent stopped 
traffic, and high density developments shall incorporate provisions for the removal of oil, 
grease and sediment from storm water discharges.   

Design Information 
Surface Storage 
Individual projects must demonstrate that surface storage is provided in accordance with 
Exhibit II, Surface Water Management Data. 

Storage requirements at the elevations specified are derived from the existing SFWMD 
permitted stage versus storage relationships for each respective drainage basin. Each project 
must provide its prorated share of the overall storage for each basin to insure that flood plain 
encroachment will not occur. 

Projects involving the expansion or redevelopment of existing sites may comply with the 
standard criteria or the section titled “REDEVELOPMENT CRITERIA” 

Any circumstances which might mitigate adverse impacts to District facilities may be submitted 
by the applicant for consideration by the District.   

Minimum Road Crown and Finished Floor Elevations 
Road crown elevations will be set no lower than the corresponding 10-year elevations indicated 
in Exhibit II.  Finished floor elevations will be set no lower than the elevations indicated in 
Exhibit II.  Please note, the City of Coral Springs may require finished floor elevations higher 
than those indicated in Exhibit II. 

 

Agenda Page 29



16 

Basic Criteria - East basin 
The East Basin of the Coral Springs Improvement District encompasses approximately 2391 AC.  
The system of lakes, canals and pumps is not permitted or operated to provide water quality 
treatment.  Each project is required to provide water quality treatment consistent with the 
requirements of the South Florida Water Management District and provide District specified 
storage.  Storage requirements are based on the gross area of each parcel.  Redevelopment 
projects which are unable to fully comply with these requirements may elect to follow the 
compliance schedule listed in Redevelopment Criteria 

 

Water Quality Treatment  
All projects are required to provide water quality treatment in accordance with SFWMD 
regulations.   For ease of reference the requirements as of 5/1/2015 are repeated here.   

• Treatment shall be provided for the greater of:  

o 1” times the site area or 
o The project’s imperviousness multiplied by 2 1/2” over the entire site (less water 

bodies).  Imperviousness is the proportion of impervious areas (excluding 
building footprint) to the site area less the building footprint.   

• Water quality treatment volumes represent wet retention volumes.  If Dry retention is 
used, then 75% of the computed volume must be provided.  If Dry detention is used 
then 50% of the volume must be provided.   These credits may not be applied to 
exfiltration trench systems.   

• All projects other than single family residential projects are required to provide ½” of 
dry pretreatment.  This dry pretreatment may be used towards meeting the overall 
water quality treatment requirements.   

• Projects exceeding the impervious areas established in the 1977 Permit need to 
compute and provide additional water quality treatment.   

• Prior to off-site discharge, all runoff shall pass through a pollution control structure 
which is designed to discharge from the center of the water column and incorporate a 
pollution retardant baffle.    

Flood Plain Storage 
Each project in the East Basin is required to provide  

• For the 10 year storm 0.1 AF/AC of storage must be provided below elevation 9.3’ 
NAVD (10.8’ NGVD).  Water quality treatment volumes below elevation 9.3’ NAVD 
may be used towards meeting this requirement.  Surface storage, exfiltration trench 
(1 hour treatment volume), storm chambers or a combination of these measures 
may be used to achieve the required storage.   

Agenda Page 30



17 

• For the 100 year storm 0.81 AF/AC of storage must be provided below an elevation 
of 10.1’ NAVD (11.6’ NGVD).  Unlike storage for the 10 year storm, this storage may 
not take into account that provided by exfiltration trench.   

• Projects which exceed the impervious areas used to obtain permit coverage (and 
listed previously) must provide additional storage to offset the additional runoff 
generated.   

In the event a project is not able to provide the required storage at the specified elevations a 
combination of perimeter berms, coupled with restricted discharge to district facilities may be 
considered.   

  

Agenda Page 31



18 

Basic Criteria - West basin 
The West Basin of the Coral Springs Improvement District encompasses approximately 2395 AC 
of lakes, canals, residential, commercial and civic uses.  Unlike the east basin, the west basin 
was designed and permitted to provide water quality treatment for the first inch of runoff.  Dry 
pretreatment or water quality treatment requirements in excess of 1” must be provided by 
each project as applicable.  Surface storage requirements are based on the gross area of each 
project and must be provided on-site.   

 

Water Quality Treatment  
Projects must provide any required water quality treatment in excess of 1”.  The exact quantity 
is determined based on SFWMD regulations.  For ease of reference the requirements as of 
5/1/2015 are repeated here.   

• Treatment shall be provided for the greater of: 

o 1” times the site area or 

o The project’s impervious multiplied by 2 1/2” over the entire site (less water 
bodies).  Imperviousness is computed as the proportion of (impervious area less 
building footprint) to the site area less the building footprint.   

o These volumes represent wet retention volumes.  If Dry retention is used, then 
75% of the computed volume must be provided.  If Dry detention is used then 
50% of the volume must be provided.   These credits may not be applied to 
exfiltration trench systems.   

• All projects other than single family residential projects are required to provide ½” of 
dry pretreatment.  This dry pretreatment may be used towards meeting the overall 
water quality treatment requirements.   

• Projects exceeding the impervious areas established in the 1977 Permit need to 
compute and provide additional water quality treatment.   

• Prior to off-site discharge, all runoff shall pass through a pollution control structure 
which is designed to discharge from the center of the water column and incorporate a 
pollution retardant baffle.   

 

Flood Plain Storage 
Each project in the West Basin is required to provide floodplain storage based on the gross area 
of each project as follows.   

• For the 10 year storm 0.05 AF/AC of storage must be provided below elevation 
8.5’ NAVD (10.0’ NGVD).   Water quality treatment volumes below elevation 8.5’ 

Agenda Page 32



19 

NAVD may be used towards meeting this requirement.   This volume may consist 
of surface storage, exfiltration trench (1 hour treatment volume), storm 
chambers or a combination.   

• For the 100 year storm 0.31 AF/AC of storage must be provided below an 
elevation of 9.6’ NAVD (11.1’ NGVD).  This storage may not include that volume 
provided by exfiltration trench.   

• Projects which exceed the impervious areas used to obtain permit coverage (and 
listed previously) must provide additional storage to offset the additional runoff 
generated.   

In the event a project is not able to provide the required storage at the specified elevations a 
combination of perimeter berms, coupled with restricted discharge to district facilities may be 
considered. 

  

Agenda Page 33



20 

Redevelopment Criteria for Commercial, Institutional, and 
Multifamily Projects 
The storm water management criteria apply to all properties.  Existing properties which do not 
meet these standards may elect to submit a compliance plan depicting the phased 
implementation of storm water management components (see following schedule) along with a 
plan for the ultimate compliance with District Criteria.    

Table 1 - Construction without Building Expansion 

Category Applicability Requirements 

1. Building permits associated with the 
ongoing maintenance (such as re-
roofing, AC replacement or seal 
coating and restriping) and not 
involving interior modifications of 
existing buildings which utilize 
privately owned drainage systems.   

Demonstrate compliance with 5 year 
recertification requirements  
Provide PRB prior to off-site discharge  

2. Interior modifications or tenant 
improvements affecting less than 
25% of the gross floor area (GFA), or 
installations to comply with ADA 
requirements provided the total 
number of parking spaces is not 
increased.   

Items required for Category 1 plus: 
Provide water quality treatment  
Surface  storage for 10 year storm  
Increase surface storage for 100 year storm by 
0.1 AF/AC (up to basin requirements) 
Demonstrate functioning operating entity (per 
Broward County Code Chapter 27) 

3. Tenant improvements or interior 
modifications to building affecting 
less than 50% of GFA or Modification 
(no net increase) of parking areas 
affecting less than 25% of existing 
paving. 
 

Items required in Categories 1 and 2 plus: 
Provide easements: to adjacent canal, over 
public water and sewer lines, cross drainage 
Removal of trees and obstacles along canal bank 
adjacent to project 
Increase surface storage by 0.2 AF/AC (up to 
basin requirements) 

4. Tenant improvements or interior 
modifications affecting less than 
75% of GFA or 
Modifications (no net increase) of 
parking areas affecting less than 
50% of existing paving. 

Items required in Categories 1 through 3 plus: 
Increase surface storage by 0.4 AF/AC (for a 
total of 0.6 AF/AC additional up to the basin 
required amount  

5. Tenant improvements or interior 
modifications affecting more than 
of 75% of existing space (i.e. 
Gutting a building) or modifications 
to parking areas comprising more than 
50% of the existing paving 

Items required in Categories 1 through 4 plus: 

Full compliance with water quality and quantity 
attenuation requirements 

Agenda Page 34



21 

 

In addition to the requirements above, projects involving the construction of additional 
impervious areas or building expansion are required to: meet the requirements as set forth in 
the redevelopment schedule, provide a plan for the ultimate, full compliance with district 
regulations and demonstrate the current proposed expansion increases (in addition to 
redevelopment criteria above) compliance as follows.   

% 𝑎𝑑𝑑𝑖𝑡. 𝑐𝑜𝑚𝑝𝑙𝑖𝑎𝑛𝑐𝑒

= �
𝑎𝑟𝑒𝑎 𝑜𝑓 𝑒𝑥𝑡𝑒𝑟𝑖𝑜𝑟 𝑖𝑚𝑝𝑟𝑜𝑣𝑒𝑚𝑒𝑛𝑡𝑠 
𝑠𝑖𝑡𝑒 𝑎𝑟𝑒𝑎 − 𝑏𝑢𝑖𝑙𝑑𝑖𝑛𝑔 𝑓𝑜𝑜𝑡𝑝𝑟𝑖𝑛𝑡

+
𝑖𝑛𝑐𝑟𝑒𝑎𝑠𝑒𝑑 𝑏𝑢𝑖𝑙𝑑𝑖𝑛𝑔 𝑎𝑟𝑒𝑎

𝑒𝑥𝑖𝑠𝑡𝑖𝑛𝑔 𝑏𝑢𝑖𝑙𝑑𝑖𝑛𝑔 𝑓𝑜𝑜𝑡𝑝𝑟𝑖𝑛𝑡
� 

 

Road Rights of Way 
The drainage calculations which served as the basis for the underlying SFWMD permit did not 
separate out, exclude or otherwise exempt road rights of way from complying with the 
requirements for water quality treatment or floodplain storage.  

Road rights of way represent a significant source of water quality degradation.  Constituents in 
storm water runoff from roads include: Heavy metals, hydrocarbons, particulates, nutrients, 
litter and debris.  To reduce the levels of these pollutants entering the District facilities and 
improve floodplain storage, all roadways shall: 

• be subject to the periodic maintenance and recertification requirements for storm 
water management systems 

• Provide ½” of dry pretreatment 
• provide PRB prior to discharge  
• provide water quality treatment consistent with the requirements of each basin 
• provide for the removal of sediment, trash, and debris prior to discharge 
• provide basin specified floodplain storage  
• Drainage modifications to comply with district requirements are subject to permit 

review by the Coral Springs Improvement District.    
 

Recognizing that not all roadways currently comply with these criteria and compliance may be 
costly the Coral Springs Improvement District will accept the following, incremental 
improvements to storm water management systems serving road rights of way along with a 
plan for the eventual, full compliance with criteria.   

  

Agenda Page 35



22 

Table 2 - Roadway Construction 

 Nature of Road Construction Required Storm Water Management Measures 
 Maintenance such as restriping 

or pavement repairs along less 
than 100 linear feet per mile of 
roadway 

• Provide PRB prior to offsite discharge 
• Demonstrate recent recertification (within 5 

years) of storm water management system or 
provide plan for compliance with 5 year renewal 
requirements 

 Addition of roadway lighting, 
installation of traffic signals, 

• Provide PRB prior to offsite discharge 
• Demonstrate recent recertification (within 5 

years) of storm water management system or 
provide plan for compliance with 5 year renewal 
requirements 

• Document extent of storm water management 
system.   

 ADA improvements at 
intersections, installation of 
guardrails, safety upgrades 

• Provide PRB prior to offsite discharge 
• Demonstrate recent recertification (within 5 

years) of storm water management system or 
provide plan for compliance with 5 year renewal 
requirements 

• Document extent of storm water management 
system.   

• Provide dry pretreatment and water quality 
treatment for 200’ along each leg of 
intersection. 

 Repaving, including overlays, 
milling and resurfacing prior to 
2025 

• Provide PRB prior to off-site discharge 
• Provide water quality treatment (East Basin) 
• Provide ½” dry pretreatment (E/W)  
• Provide / document extent of drainage system 
• Document periodic maintenance and recent 

recertification of drainage system 
 Major road construction such 

as alterations affecting the 
number of travel lanes, 
addition of turn lanes, re-
alignment increases in 
impervious area or  
Repaving, including overlays, 
milling and resurfacing after 
Jan 1 2015 

• Provide PRB prior to off-site discharge. 
• Provide ½” dry pretreatment (E/W) 
• Provide/demonstrate water quality treatment 

(East basin only) 
• Provide/demonstrate compliance with basin 

storage requirements (E/W) 
• Demonstrate/document periodic maintenance 

of system and current recertification.   

 

Agenda Page 36



23 

Supporting Information 

The following information may be used when additional information or analysis is required.   

Rainfall 
Design rainfall amounts (24 hour) for the Coral Springs Improvement District are: 

10-Year  100-Year 

9.5 (inches)  14.2 (inches)  

Distribution follows standard SFWMD rainfall distributions 

Soil Storage 
Ground Storage – the Soil Conservation Service/SFWMD method shall be used for design:  
Ground storage values repeated here are only to be used to compute extra runoff for additional 
impervious areas.  Soil storage is used only in the computation of excess runoff, when a project 
exceeds the allowed impervious area.      

Depth to Water Table  Cumulative Water Storage 

1’   0.5” 
2’   1.9” 
3’   5.0” 
4’   8.2” 

 

Soil storage beneath impervious surfaces cannot be considered for design nor can ground 
storage be considered below 4-foot depths. 

Infiltration and Percolation 
Ground surface – Ground surface infiltration will be reviewed on the basis of commonly 
accepted procedures such as those of Soil Conservation Service (see U.S. Department of 
Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service Technical Paper No. 149, “A Method for Estimating 
Volume and Rate of Runoff in Small Watersheds” (1973), and U. S. Department of Agriculture, 
Soil Conservation Service Technical Release No. 55, “Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds” 
(1975); or Rational Method (see Florida State Road Department, “Drainage Manual” (2nd 
Edition, rev. 1978)); or standard Civil Engineering textbooks. 

Subsurface – subsurface exfiltration will be reviewed only on the basis of representative or 
actual test data submitted by the Applicant. Tests shall be consistent as to elevation, location, 
soils, etc. with the system design to which the test data will be applied. 

Agenda Page 37



24 

Runoff  
 When considering additional impacts, the following methods of quantifying runoff  may be 
used.   

Rainfall minus losses and storage. 

Soil conservation Service (see U.S. Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service, 
“Natural Engineering Handbook, Section 4, Hydrology” – 1972), with extra attention to 
hydrologic accounting of water table conditions. 

Rational method, for systems serving projects of less than 10 acres total land area (see Florida 
State Department of Transportation, “Drainage Manual” (2nd Edition, revised 1978); or 
standard Civil Engineering texts. 

Datum 
In order to be consistent with nearby jurisdictions the Coral Springs Improvement District in 
converting from using NGVD (National Geodetic Vertical Datum) to NAVD (North American 
Vertical Datum.  To convert elevation NGVD to NAVD the following approximation is 
acceptable. 
 
Elevation (in Ft) NAVD = Elevation (in Ft) NGVD -1.5 ft.   
  

Agenda Page 38



25 

  

Exhibit 1 - Bridge Crossing Criteria 

 

 

 
Bridge Crossing Criteria 

Basin Basin Control Elevation 
100-Year Flood 

Elevation 
Minimum Low Chord 

Elevation 

CSID 

East 5.0’  10.1’ 11.1’ 

West 5.0’ 9.6’ 11.0 

    

Note: 1.   All elevations referenced to NAVD.  An acceptable conversion equation is   

Elev. NAVD + 1.5 ft. = Elev. in NGVD. 

           2.   Basin Control Elevations may vary Seasonally.   

 

 

  

Agenda Page 39



26 

Exhibit 2 - Surface Water Management Data 

 
EXHIBIT 2 
Surface Water Management Data for CSID 

Drainage Basin 

Basin 
Control 

Elevation 

10-Year 
Flood 

Elevation 

100-Year 
Flood 

Elevation 

Minimum 
Finished 

Floor 
Elevation 

Required 
Minimum 
Stage @ 
10-Year 

Elevation  
(AF/ac)* 

Required 
Minimum 
Stage @ 
100-Year 
Elevation  
(AF/ac)* 

CSID 

East Basin 5.0’ 9.3’ 10.1’ 10.5’ 0.10 0.81 

West Basin 5.0’ 8.5’ 9.6’ 10.0’ 0.05 0.31 

       

*(AF/ac) Storage required per acre of Project Area. For projects exceeding assumed impervious area, additional 
storage will be required.   

   Note: 1.   All elevations referenced to NAVD                   2.   Basin Control Elevations may vary 
Seasonally.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 40



27 

Exhibit 3 - Application for Permit 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Agenda Page 41



28 

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT 

Board of Supervisors  

Coral Springs Improvement District 

10300 NW 11th Manor 

Coral Springs, FL 33071 

 Permit Type 

 Right of Way 

 Surface Water Management 
 General 

 

1. PROPOSED USE OF DISTRICT FACILITY:  
  
2. LOCATION OF WORK:  
  
   
      
 Subdivision  Lot No.  Block No. 
      
 Section:   Township:   Range:  
      
3. DISTRICT WORKS INVOLVED IN PROOSED CONSTRUCTION OR USE:  
  
4. NAME, ADDRESS, PHONE AND FAX OF OWNER OF PROPOSED WORK OR STRUCTURE: 
  
  
  
5. NAME, ADDRESS, PHONE AND FAX OF APPLICANT OTHER THAN OWNER (If any): 
  
  
  
6. AREA PROPOSED TO BE SERVED:  (Give property description sufficient for identification, 

            
  
7. This application, including sketches, drawings or plans and specifications attached, contains a 

full and complete description of the work proposed or use desired of the above described 
facilities of the District and for which permit is herewith applied.  It shall be part of any permit 
that may be issued.  It is agreed that all work or the use of the District's facilities involved will be 
in accordance with the permit to be granted and with the Permit Criteria Manual heretofore 
adopted by the District, which have been examined and are understood by the applicant and as 
the same may be hereafter from time to time amended, changed or revised and which (it is 
further understood) shall be incorporated in reference as a part of any permit which may be 
granted. 

 

  

Agenda Page 42



29 

Standard Conditions ARE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. In the event the DISTRICT wishes to obtain the ingress or egress to its property, easement or 
right of way affected by the permit issued pursuant to this application for any lawful District 
purpose, including but not limited to maintenance of any lake, canal or related water 
management infrastructure, the removal, demolition and reconstruction, if any, of the proposed 
work or structure permitted hereunder shall be at the sole expense of the owner or the owner’s 
successors or assigns. 

2. PERMITTEE, by acceptance of the permit, covenants and agrees that the DISTRICT, District 
Managers, district consultants and its successors shall be promptly indemnified, defended, 
protected, exonerated, and saved harmless by the Permittee from and against all expenses, 
liabilities, claims, demands, and proceedings incurred by or imposed on said District in 
connection with any claim, proceeding, demand, administrative hearing, suit, appellate 
proceeding, or other activity; including unfounded or "nuisance" claims, in which the District 
may become involved, or any settlement thereof, arising out of any operations under this 
permit, including use of canal water for irrigation purposes, damage to landscaping, paint 
damage to automobiles, buildings, or other structures, and any property damage or personal 
injuries, fatal or non-fatal, of any kind or character. 

3. PERMITTEE agrees that no debris will be placed into the waterways of the District.   

For this purpose the PERMITTEE has submitted a check in the amount of Two-Thousand Five 
Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) which PERMITTEE  agrees to forfeit if debris is found to have been 
placed into the District’s waterways; said determination to be at the sole discretion of the 
District and is acknowledged by PERMITTEE to represent both actual and punitive damages for 
violating the provisions of this permit and, further, the provisions of Chapter 298, Florida 
Statutes. 

If construction of the facilities called for in this permit have not been completed, an additional 
Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) will be submitted by PERMITTEE to cover future 
occurrences of discharging builder debris into the District’s waterways.  

4. Applicant agrees to maintain the system in accordance with permit documents and to recertify 
the function, condition and operation of the system according to the District’s schedule and 
submit “Storm water Inspection Reports” and shall comply with all re-inspection procedures 
required under the District’s policies. 

5. Applicant agrees to maintain adjacent canal/lake banks in accordance with the specified cross 
section, maintain permitted vegetation to the water’s edge and keep the canal and canal bank 
free and clear of trash and debris.   

6. Permittee agrees to correct any shoaling or erosion of district facilities resulting from the 
installation or operation of components authorized by the permit.   

7. Applicant agrees to remove (and process permits for tree removal through the City of Coral 
Springs) any landscaping from adjacent canal rights of way other than grass or approved ground 
cover.  The removal, mitigation, and permitting shall be at the applicant’s own cost.   

8. Abide by the terms and conditions of the permit. 

9. To maintain works or structures in a good and safe condition. 

Agenda Page 43



30 

10. To allow inspection at any time by the District of any works or structure established by permit 
upon notification. 

11. Prevent the discharge of debris and/or aquatic weeds into any District works. 

12. To maintain the water quality of all waters discharging into District works. 

13. To conform with any alterations of or amendments to this manual, or those imposed by the 
DEP, SFWMD or EPA that may be deemed necessary by the District. 

14. To make any immediate changes or repairs as requested by District personnel to insure the safe 
operation of the District’s waterways during storm events. 

15. Restore existing lake/canal banks to the design cross section of 4 Horizontal: 1 Vertical to 2 ft. 
below the control elevation. 

16. Upon completion of the construction specified in the permit, the applicant shall submit to the 
District 3 as-built surveys and electronic media certified by a professional engineer, in a format 
generally compatible with the requirements of other storm water management jurisdictions.   

17. Acknowledges that failure to maintain the system, comply with re-certification requirements, or 
performing construction with District authorization may result in the restriction or elimination of 
storm water discharges to District facilities.   

18. No beneficial use of the property is allowed until the Coral Springs Improvement District 
has accepted the engineer’s storm water management certification and released the 
project.   

SPECIAL CONDITIONS WILL BE ADDED WHEN APPLICABLE: 

 Submitted 
this 

 day 
of 

 , 20 

  

 Company and/or Owner:  

  

 By:  

 Name
: 

 

  

 Title:  

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Reviewed and approved by Board meeting held 

 

  

  

Agenda Page 44



31 

 

Exhibit 4 - Typical Canal Cross Section 

  

Agenda Page 45



Agenda Page 46



33 

Exhibit 5 - Typical Project Cross Section 

  

Agenda Page 47



Agenda Page 48



35 

Exhibit 6 - District Map 

  

Agenda Page 49



Agenda Page 50



37 

Exhibit 7 - Permit Fee Schedule 

 
EXHIBIT 7 
District Permit Schedule Fee 

    

PERMIT 

 
Surface Water  
Management  Right-of-Way  Trash Bond Required 

 

CSID $ 500.00 $ 500.00 $2,500.00 

 

PERMIT RENEWAL 

 
Surface Water  
Management  Right-of-Way   

    

CSID $ 200.00 N/A  

    

Note :  

Permits fee amount, represents the initial review for projects requiring District approval not to 
exceed Three (3) hours. In addition, the cost of outside consulting services (including but not 
limited to engineering services, accounting services and legal services) at the rates charged by 
such consultants and any other costs and expenses incurred by the District in order to review 
applications shall be paid by the applicant. 

 

The renewal fee needs to be submitted at the time of certification. Please note that failure to 
comply with this requirements may result in warnings followed by violations fee in the amount 
of $100.00. 

 

Agenda Page 51



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fifth Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 52



4/7/2016 

Incident Report 

 

 On Thursday April 7, 2016 at approx... 9:45 am, Asad Hosein and Jason Seigal were 

assisting me conducting a canal inspection of Sec # 25 in the East basin. Upon completion of 

this task, we were loading the boat onto the trailer next to the rear property at 1388 NW 87 

ave. An elderly woman, about 72 yrs. old, (I believe is Ms. Lombardo) exited this residence to 

walk 2 dogs. The dogs were leashed but one had gotten loose of her grasp while she was 

struggling to keep the other from pulling her along. Jason observed that the woman was near 

the edge of the water. She leaned over in an attempt to pick up the leash from the ground of 

the dog that was loose. The dog she was holding pulled her forward causing her to lose her 

balance and fall head first into the canal, the front and side of her head struck rocks along the 

shoreline causing lacerations and profuse bleeding. 

Asad and Jason immediately retrieved the woman from the canal and pulled her up on to the 

canal bank. Ms. Lombardo was conscious but disoriented. I immediately called 911, while Asad 

applied pressure to the wound using wads of paper towels in an attempt to curtail the 

bleeding. Jason corralled the dogs and got them back to the woman’s house and then assisted 

Asad in comforting Mrs. Lombardo while waiting for EMT to arrive. EMT were on scene within 

5 minutes. I located Ms. Lombardo’s son, Carl, who was sleeping at her residence and alerted 

him to the situation.  

I believe the CPR/First Aid training provided by the District enabled staff to react instinctively 

and without hesitation, minimizing the loss of blood and further complicating the situation. I 

am proud of the actions of my colleagues.   

The EMT’s thanked us for our efforts. Carl also thanked us for saving his moms life.  

Sincerely,  

Shawn Frankenhauser 

CSID Safety Coordinator 

 

Agenda Page 53



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sixth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 54



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6A. 
  

Agenda Page 55



Agenda Page 56



Agenda Page 57



Agenda Page 58



Agenda Page 59



Agenda Page 60



Agenda Page 61



Agenda Page 62



Agenda Page 63



 
 

Finance and Administrative Services Department 
PURCHASING DIVISION 
115 S. Andrews Avenue, Room 212 • Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 • 954-357-6066 • FAX 954-357-8535 

 
 

 
 

Broward County Board of County Commissioners 
Mark D. Bogen • Beam Furr • Dale V.C. Holness • Martin David Kiar • Chip LaMarca • Stacy Ritter • Tim Ryan • Barbara Sharief • Lois Wexler 

www.broward.org 
 
 

 
November 17, 2015 
 
 
Trio Development 
Attention: Larry Shortz   EMAIL TRANSMITTAL 
1701 Northwest 22 Court 
Pompano Beach, FL  33069 
larry@triodevelopment.com 
 
    
Reference: Contract No. Y1180908B1 – Lift Station Rehabilitation and Repair 
 
Dear Mr. Shortz: 
 
We hereby accept your written offer to renew the above referenced contract. 
 
This renewal is subject to all terms/conditions contained in the original contract.  This contract 
renewal is in effect for the period beginning February 25, 2016 and ending February 24, 2017.  
   
A copy of this notice is being forwarded to the appropriate User(s).  Purchase Order(s) will be 
placed as and when required. 
 
Thank you for your interest in doing business with Broward County. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________ 

 Purchasing Agent 
 

 
C: Greg Balicki, Director, Water and Wastewater Services 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 64



 

 
 
Finance and Administrative Services Department 
PURCHASING DIVISION 
115 S. Andrews Avenue, Room 212 • Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 • 954-357-6066 • FAX 954-357-8535 
 
 

 
 

Broward County Board of County Commissioners 
Sue Gunzburger • Dale V.C. Holness • Kristin Jacobs • Martin David Kiar • Chip LaMarca • Stacy Ritter • Tim Ryan • Barbara Sharief • Lois Wexler 

www.broward.org 
 
 

March 3, 2014 
 
Lawrence R. Shortz, President 
Trio Development Corporation 
1701 N.W. 22 Court 
Pompano Beach, FL 33069 
Email: chris@triodevelopment.com; Fax: 954-971-0030 
 
REFERENCE: Bid No. Y1180908B1, Lift Station Rehabilitation and Repair 

Annual Estimated Award Amount: $4,477,000 
 
Dear Mr. Shortz: 
 
This is to confirm that the Board of County Commissioners at its meeting held on February 25, 2014, under Agenda 
Item No. 28 accepted your Bid on the above-referenced solicitation. 
 
A Bid tabulation of all Bids/Proposals received is enclosed, with item(s) awarded to your firm indicated. 
 
The Contract is in effect for the period beginning February 25, 2014 and ending February 24, 2015.  
 
Purchase Order(s) will be placed as and when required. 
 
A copy of this Notice, with a copy of your Bid/Proposal, including all terms and conditions, is being forwarded to all 
Using Agencies. 
 
Thank you for your interest in doing business with Broward County. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Brenda J. Billingsley, Director 
Purchasing Division 
 
 
By: __________________________ 

Ilyse S. Valdivia, CPPO, CPPB 
 Purchasing Agent III 
 
 
c:  Jeff Clark, Engineer I, Water and Wastewater Services/Water and Wastewater Engineering Division 
  
 
 
 

 

Agenda Page 65



Bid No.  Y1180908B1 Date Bid Posted:   10/30/2013
LIFT STATION REHABILITATION AND REPAIR Date Bid Opened:   12/11/2013
Agency:  Water and Wastewater Services Bid  Submittals:   5
Purchasing Agent: Ilyse S. Valdivia Declinations: 0

Tabulation of Bids

Item No. Commodity Code(s) 91356
Description Qty Unit  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price 

EX Widgets 14 EA  $             1.00  $             1.00  $             1.00  $                      1.00  $             1.00 

1.01 Mobilization for Routine Work Order under $5,000.00 13 EA  $         200.00  $      1,250.00  $      2,000.00  $                  900.00  $      2,100.00 
1.02 Mobilization for Routine Work Order from $5,000.01 to $25,000.00 13 EA  $         500.00  $      2,000.00  $      1,500.00  $               1,800.00  $      2,100.00 
1.03 Mobilization for Routine Work Order over $25,000.01 25 EA  $      1,500.00  $      2,500.00  $      1,000.00  $               2,300.00  $      1,400.00 
1.04 Mobilization for Urgent Work Order under $5,000.00 8 EA  $         200.00  $      1,500.00  $      3,000.00  $               1,300.00  $      2,400.00 
1.05 Mobilization for Urgent Work Order from $5,000.01 to $25,000.00 8 EA  $         500.00  $      2,500.00  $      2,500.00  $               2,100.00  $      2,900.00 
1.06 Mobilization for Urgent Work Order over $25,000.01 9 EA  $      1,500.00  $      3,000.00  $      2,000.00  $               2,300.00  $      2,900.00 
1.07 Provide Foreperson 380 HRS  $         100.00  $           70.00  $           47.00  $                    62.00  $           95.00 
1.08 Provide Laborer / Crewperson 760 HRS  $           45.00  $           60.00  $           23.00  $                    52.00  $           65.00 
1.09 Furnish Combination Cleaner Truck 350 HRS  $         175.00  $         225.00  $         218.00  $                  200.00  $         350.00 
1.10 Provide Backhoe 50 DAYS  $         500.00  $         600.00  $         572.00  $                  525.00  $      1,000.00 
1.11 Project Planning Cost (When no work order is issued) 4 EA  $         350.00  $         350.00  $         350.00  $                  350.00  $         350.00 
1.12 Pass-thru for Non-County Agency Permits and Fees per Attachment "A" Allowance  Allowance  Allowance  Allowance  Allowance  Allowance 
1.13 Pass-Thru for Parts and Materials as per Attachment "A" Allowance  Allowance  Allowance  Allowance  Allowance  Allowance 
1.14 Pass-Thru for Florida Power and Light as per Attachment "A" Allowance  Allowance  Allowance  Allowance  Allowance  Allowance 

SECTION 1 Subtotal 

2.01 Demolish Slab on Grade, ≤ 8 inches thick 2200 SF  $           10.00  $           30.00  $             3.60  $                      8.00  $           40.00 
2.02 Demolish Slab over Wet Well or Vault > 8 inches ≤ 12 inches thick 2300 SF  $           20.00  $           50.00  $           12.00  $                    42.00  $           50.00 
2.03 Demolish and Remove Asphalt Paving 2000 SF  $           10.00  $           50.00  $             2.00  $                      8.00  $             2.00 
2.04 Demolish Valve Vault and Top Slab 19 EA  $      3,000.00  $      1,500.00  $      3,000.00  $               2,500.00  $         800.00 
2.05 Remove existing Iron Piping and Fittings in Wet Wells or Vaults 31 TN  $         100.00  $      3,500.00  $      2,400.00  $               2,000.00  $      4,000.00 
2.06 Remove existing Iron Piping and Fittings below Grade, including Excavation, Temporary 

Restraint, Backfilling, Compaction, and Restoration 17 TN  $         100.00  $      4,500.00  $      4,000.00  $               4,600.00  $      4,000.00 

2.07 Remove existing Valves (10 inches and under) below Grade, including Excavation, 
Backfilling, Compaction and Restoration 24 EA  $         100.00  $      1,400.00  $      1,700.00  $               1,800.00  $         700.00 

2.08 Remove existing Valves (10 inches and under) in Wet Wells or Vaults 125 EA  $         500.00  $         800.00  $         500.00  $                  700.00  $         700.00 
2.09 Remove existing Pump Base Ells and Rails 46 EA  $      1,000.00  $         650.00  $         600.00  $                  500.00  $      2,000.00 
2.10 Remove existing Chain Link Fence 650 LF  $             5.00  $             3.50  $             7.00  $                      3.00  $             5.00 
2.11 Plug and Prepare Abandoned Pipe for Grout Filling 17 EA  $         100.00  $         300.00  $      1,000.00  $                  450.00  $         800.00 
2.12 Grout Fill Abandoned Pipe 20 CY  $         200.00  $         260.00  $         285.00  $                  225.00  $         400.00 
2.13 Demolish Wet Well (6' or 8' diameter) 30 VF  $         200.00  $         650.00  $         550.00  $                  800.00  $         800.00 
2.14 Fill in Abandoned Wet Well or Valve Vault 60 CY  $           50.00  $           50.00  $         225.00  $                    52.00  $         100.00 
2.15 Remove Fillet from Bottom of Wet Well 200 CF  $         200.00  $         110.00  $         150.00  $                    35.00  $         150.00 

SECTION 2 Subtotal 
30,000.00$             

695,350.00$           

68,000.00$             

16,800.00$             
87,500.00$             
92,000.00$             

3,250.00$               
13,600.00$             

8,000.00$               
24,000.00$             

6,000.00$               

 Akerblom Contracting, Inc. 

 2064 S.W. 28 Terrace 

 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 

Total Price
14.00$                    

27,300.00$             
27,300.00$             
35,000.00$             
19,200.00$             
23,200.00$             
26,100.00$             
36,100.00$             
49,400.00$             

122,500.00$           
50,000.00$             

1,400.00$               

7,000.00$              
519,820.00$          

78,200.00$            

43,200.00$            
87,500.00$            
23,000.00$            

1,950.00$              
7,650.00$              
4,500.00$              

24,000.00$            
3,120.00$              

 Hinterland Group, Inc. 

 5401 N. Haverhill Rd, # 114 

 West Palm Beach, FL 33407 

Total Price
14.00$                   

11,700.00$            
23,400.00$            
57,500.00$            
10,400.00$            
16,800.00$            
20,700.00$            
23,560.00$            
39,520.00$            
70,000.00$            
26,250.00$            

1,400.00$              
22,500.00$            

3,000.00$                
40,000.00$              

318,650.00$            

3,100.00$                
1,700.00$                

2,400.00$                
62,500.00$              
46,000.00$              

3,250.00$                
1,700.00$                
4,000.00$                
6,000.00$                

1,400.00$                
22,500.00$              
15,000.00$              
25,000.00$              

288,050.00$            

22,000.00$              
46,000.00$              
20,000.00$              
57,000.00$              

 Southeastern Engineering 
Contractors, Inc. 

 12054 N.W. 98 Avenue 

 Hialeah Gardens, FL 33018 

 Intercounty Engineering, Inc. 

 1925 N.W. 18 Street 

 Pompano Beach, FL 33069 

16,250.00$               
26,000.00$               
62,500.00$               

Total Price
14.00$                      

Total Price
14.00$                   

26,000.00$            
19,500.00$            
25,000.00$            

1,600.00$                
4,000.00$                

13,500.00$              
38,000.00$              
34,200.00$              
61,250.00$              
25,000.00$              

 Trio Development Corporation 

 1701 NW 22nd Court 

 Pompano Beach, FL 33069 

Total Price
14.00$                     

2,600.00$                
6,500.00$                

37,500.00$              

68,000.00$            

40,800.00$            
62,500.00$            

1,400.00$                 
22,500.00$               
15,000.00$               
25,000.00$               

408,600.00$             

3,000.00$                 
22,000.00$               

715,075.00$             

76,500.00$               

33,600.00$               
100,000.00$             

29,900.00$               
2,275.00$                 
5,100.00$                 

27,600.00$            
4,550.00$              

457,070.00$          

5,200.00$                 
19,500.00$               

17,000.00$            
5,700.00$              

16,500.00$            
13,500.00$            
30,000.00$            

24,000.00$            
20,000.00$            

1,400.00$              

66,000.00$               
115,000.00$             
100,000.00$             

28,500.00$               
108,500.00$             

336,640.00$          

22,500.00$            
15,000.00$            
25,000.00$            

7,920.00$              
27,600.00$            

4,000.00$              
57,000.00$            
74,400.00$            

18,000.00$            
17,860.00$            
17,480.00$            
76,300.00$            
28,600.00$            

12,000.00$               
20,000.00$               

15,000.00$            
25,000.00$            

363,730.00$          

17,600.00$            
96,600.00$            

27,000.00$               
26,600.00$               
45,600.00$               
78,750.00$               
30,000.00$               

16,000.00$            
47,500.00$            
62,000.00$            

22,500.00$             
15,000.00$             
25,000.00$             

480,000.00$           

88,000.00$             
115,000.00$           

4,000.00$               
15,200.00$             

124,000.00$           

SECTION 1 - GENERAL CONDITIONS

SECTION 2 - DEMOLITION, REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL

E
xhibit 1 

P
age 1 of 5

Agenda Page 66



Bid No.  Y1180908B1 Date Bid Posted:   10/30/2013
LIFT STATION REHABILITATION AND REPAIR Date Bid Opened:   12/11/2013
Agency:  Water and Wastewater Services Bid  Submittals:   5
Purchasing Agent: Ilyse S. Valdivia Declinations: 0

Tabulation of Bids

Item No. Commodity Code(s) 91356
Description Qty Unit  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price 

EX Widgets 14 EA  $             1.00  $             1.00  $             1.00  $                      1.00  $             1.00 

 Akerblom Contracting, Inc. 

 2064 S.W. 28 Terrace 

 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 

Total Price
14.00$                    

 Hinterland Group, Inc. 

 5401 N. Haverhill Rd, # 114 

 West Palm Beach, FL 33407 

Total Price
14.00$                   

 Southeastern Engineering 
Contractors, Inc. 

 12054 N.W. 98 Avenue 

 Hialeah Gardens, FL 33018 

 Intercounty Engineering, Inc. 

 1925 N.W. 18 Street 

 Pompano Beach, FL 33069 

Total Price
14.00$                      

Total Price
14.00$                   

 Trio Development Corporation 

 1701 NW 22nd Court 

 Pompano Beach, FL 33069 

Total Price
14.00$                     

3.01 F & I Temporary By-pass Pumps and Piping (up to 50,000 gpd) 220 DAYS  $           50.00  $         100.00  $         340.00  $                  150.00  $         500.00 
3.02 F & I Temporary By-pass Pumps and Piping (50,001 gpd to 250,000 gpd) 190 DAYS  $         200.00  $         100.00  $         345.00  $                  250.00  $         500.00 
3.03 F & I Temporary By-pass Pumps and Piping (250,001 to 1.0 mgd) 60 DAYS  $         225.00  $         480.00  $         350.00  $                  350.00  $         500.00 
3.04 F & I Temporary By-pass Pumps and Piping (over 1.0 mgd) 30 DAYS  $         250.00  $         650.00  $         355.00  $                  500.00  $      1,000.00 
3.05 Operate and Maintain Temporary By-pass System (up to 50,000 gpd) 220 DAYS  $           50.00  $         100.00  $         250.00  $                  250.00  $         400.00 
3.06 Operate and Maintain Temporary By-pass System (50,001 gpd to 250,000 gpd) 190 DAYS  $         150.00  $         100.00  $         250.00  $                  350.00  $         400.00 
3.07 Operate and Maintain Temporary By-pass System (250,001 gpd to 1.0 mgd) 60 DAYS  $         175.00  $         125.00  $         250.00  $                  600.00  $         400.00 
3.08 Operate and Maintain Temporary By-pass System (over 1.0 mgd) 30 DAYS  $         200.00  $         125.00  $         250.00  $               1,000.00  $      1,000.00 
3.09 Exploratory Excavation 8 EA  $      1,000.00  $      2,500.00  $      1,200.00  $               2,400.00  $         600.00 
3.10 Furnish and Install Temporary Line Stop (4" to 6" pipe) 3 EA  $      1,750.00  $      2,500.00  $      6,500.00  $               2,000.00  $      4,000.00 
3.11 Furnish and Install Temporary Line Stop (8" to 12" pipe) 2 EA  $      3,000.00  $      3,500.00  $      7,500.00  $               2,600.00  $      6,000.00 
3.12 Furnish and Install Temporary Line Stop (14" to 24" pipe) 2 EA  $      8,000.00  $    10,500.00  $    11,400.00  $               6,200.00  $    13,000.00 
3.13 Lime Rock Base Course including Sub-base Preparation - 8 inch 220 CY  $         165.00  $         125.00  $         160.00  $                  122.00  $         150.00 
3.14 Lime Rock Base Course including Sub-base Preparation - 12 inch 120 CY  $         200.00  $         145.00  $         190.00  $                  150.00  $         150.00 
3.15 Saw Cut Asphalt Paving 1150 LF  $             5.00  $             2.00  $             2.00  $                      2.00  $             5.00 
3.16 1 inch Asphalt Concrete Pavement 850 SY  $           10.00  $           65.00  $           16.00  $                    45.00  $           50.00 
3.17 Furnish and Install 3/4 inch Washed Rock over Weed Barrier 300 SY  $           22.00  $           30.00  $           60.00  $                    32.00  $           45.00 
3.18 Furnish and Install Seed and Mulch 50 SY  $             3.00  $             5.00  $             4.50  $                      6.00  $             6.00 
3.19 Furnish and Install Bahia Sod 400 SY  $             5.00  $             4.70  $             6.50  $                      5.00  $             7.00 
3.20 Furnish and Install Floratam Sod 800 SY  $             7.00  $             5.00  $             7.50  $                      5.50  $             8.00 
3.21 Furnish and Install Pipe Bollards 31 EA  $         300.00  $         250.00  $         500.00  $                  300.00  $         400.00 
3.22 Relocate Existing Chain Link Fence 200 LF  $           10.00  $           15.00  $           18.00  $                    16.00  $           25.00 
3.23 Furnish and Install New 6-foot Chain Link Fence 300 LF  $           40.00  $           40.00  $           48.00  $                    25.00  $           40.00 
3.24 Furnish and Install 12-foot Chain Link Swing Gate 2 EA  $      2,000.00  $      1,200.00  $      2,500.00  $               1,200.00  $      2,500.00 

SECTION 3 Subtotal 694,450.00$           

42,500.00$             
13,500.00$             

300.00$                  
2,800.00$               
6,400.00$               

12,400.00$             
5,000.00$               

12,000.00$             
5,000.00$               

24,000.00$             
30,000.00$             

4,800.00$               
12,000.00$             
12,000.00$             
26,000.00$             
33,000.00$             
18,000.00$             

5,750.00$               

110,000.00$           
95,000.00$             
30,000.00$             
30,000.00$             
88,000.00$             
76,000.00$             

38,250.00$            
9,600.00$              

300.00$                 
2,000.00$              
4,400.00$              
9,300.00$              
3,200.00$              
7,500.00$              
2,400.00$              

36,000.00$            
30,000.00$            
19,200.00$            

6,000.00$              
5,200.00$              

12,400.00$            
26,840.00$            
18,000.00$            

2,300.00$              

33,000.00$            
47,500.00$            
21,000.00$            
15,000.00$            
55,000.00$            
66,500.00$            

4,000.00$                
277,450.00$            

5,750.00$                
8,500.00$                
6,600.00$                

150.00$                   
2,000.00$                
5,600.00$                
9,300.00$                
2,000.00$                

12,000.00$              

28,500.00$              
10,500.00$              

6,000.00$                
8,000.00$                
5,250.00$                
6,000.00$                

16,000.00$              
36,300.00$              
24,000.00$              

11,000.00$              
38,000.00$              
13,500.00$              

7,500.00$                
11,000.00$              

339,780.00$             503,125.00$          470,890.00$          

47,500.00$            
15,000.00$            

7,500.00$              
9,600.00$              

74,800.00$            
65,550.00$            
21,000.00$            
10,650.00$            
55,000.00$            

7,750.00$                 

19,500.00$            

15,500.00$            

22,000.00$               
19,000.00$               
28,800.00$               
19,500.00$               
22,000.00$               

55,250.00$               
9,000.00$                 

250.00$                    
1,880.00$                 
4,000.00$                 

3,000.00$                 
12,000.00$               

2,400.00$                 

19,000.00$               
7,500.00$                 
3,750.00$                 

20,000.00$               
7,500.00$                 
7,000.00$                 

21,000.00$               
27,500.00$               
17,400.00$               

2,300.00$                 

3,600.00$              
14,400.00$            

5,000.00$              

13,600.00$            
18,000.00$            

225.00$                 
2,600.00$              
6,000.00$              

15,000.00$            
22,800.00$            
35,200.00$            
22,800.00$            

2,300.00$              

SECTION 3 - SITE WORK

E
xhibit 1 

P
age 2 of 5

Agenda Page 67



Bid No.  Y1180908B1 Date Bid Posted:   10/30/2013
LIFT STATION REHABILITATION AND REPAIR Date Bid Opened:   12/11/2013
Agency:  Water and Wastewater Services Bid  Submittals:   5
Purchasing Agent: Ilyse S. Valdivia Declinations: 0

Tabulation of Bids

Item No. Commodity Code(s) 91356
Description Qty Unit  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price 

EX Widgets 14 EA  $             1.00  $             1.00  $             1.00  $                      1.00  $             1.00 

 Akerblom Contracting, Inc. 

 2064 S.W. 28 Terrace 

 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 

Total Price
14.00$                    

 Hinterland Group, Inc. 

 5401 N. Haverhill Rd, # 114 

 West Palm Beach, FL 33407 

Total Price
14.00$                   

 Southeastern Engineering 
Contractors, Inc. 

 12054 N.W. 98 Avenue 

 Hialeah Gardens, FL 33018 

 Intercounty Engineering, Inc. 

 1925 N.W. 18 Street 

 Pompano Beach, FL 33069 

Total Price
14.00$                      

Total Price
14.00$                   

 Trio Development Corporation 

 1701 NW 22nd Court 

 Pompano Beach, FL 33069 

Total Price
14.00$                     

4.01 Saw Cut Concrete up to 12 inches thick 380 LF  $           30.00  $           30.00  $           15.00  $                    35.00  $           30.00 
4.02 Saw Cut Concrete > 12 inches ≤ 24 inches thick 30 LF  $           35.00  $           40.00  $           50.00  $                    50.00  $           80.00 
4.03 Core Hole in Concrete up to 12 inches thick (6 inch to 12 inch diameter) 64 EA  $         400.00  $         750.00  $         900.00  $                  650.00  $         500.00 
4.04 Core Hole in Concrete up to 12 inches thick (over 12 inch diameter) 20 EA  $         750.00  $         900.00  $      1,300.00  $                  750.00  $         700.00 
4.05 Furnish and Install Precast Wet Well Structure (6 foot diameter) 70 VF  $      1,500.00  $      1,500.00  $         900.00  $               3,000.00  $      2,500.00 
4.06 Furnish and Install Precast Wet Well Structure (8 foot diameter) 30 VF  $      2,000.00  $      2,100.00  $      1,200.00  $               3,200.00  $      2,800.00 
4.07 Furnish and Install Precast Wet Well Structure (10 foot diameter) 30 VF  $      2,200.00  $      3,000.00  $      1,800.00  $               3,600.00  $      3,200.00 
4.08 Furnish and Install Precast Wet Well Structure (12 foot diameter) 35 VF  $      2,400.00  $      3,500.00  $      2,100.00  $               4,500.00  $      3,800.00 

4.09
Furnish and Install Wet Well Precast Top Slab with 2.5 foot x 4.5 foot Hatch (6 foot 
diameter)

9 EA  $      6,000.00  $      4,000.00  $      2,200.00  $               5,200.00  $      6,000.00 

4.10
Furnish and Install Wet Well Precast Top Slab with 3 foot x 6 foot Hatch (8 foot diameter) 4 EA  $      6,500.00  $      5,000.00  $      3,360.00  $               5,600.00  $      8,000.00 

4.11
Furnish and Install Wet Well Precast Top Slab with 4 foot x 6 foot Hatch (10 foot diameter) 4 EA  $      6,700.00  $      5,500.00  $      4,200.00  $               6,500.00  $      8,500.00 

4.12
Furnish and Install Wet Well Precast Top Slab with 4 foot x 6 foot Hatch (12 foot diameter) 3 EA  $      6,900.00  $      6,500.00  $      5,700.00  $               8,500.00  $    10,000.00 

4.13 Furnish and Install Retrofit Hatch; 47" x 47" 2 EA  $      1,300.00  $      3,350.00  $      5,200.00  $               5,000.00  $      4,000.00 
4.14 Furnish and Install Retrofit Hatch; 47" x 53" 2 EA  $      1,400.00  $      3,500.00  $      5,300.00  $               5,200.00  $      4,000.00 
4.15 Furnish and Install Retrofit Hatch; 47" x 71" 2 EA  $      1,700.00  $      4,000.00  $      6,500.00  $               5,900.00  $      4,000.00 
4.16 Furnish and Install Retrofit Hatch; 59" x 59" 2 EA  $      1,800.00  $      4,500.00  $      6,000.00  $               5,900.00  $      4,000.00 
4.17 Furnish and Install Wet Well Fillet 110 CF  $         200.00  $           30.00  $           50.00  $                    35.00  $           50.00 
4.18 Furnish and Install 4.5 foot x 7.0 foot Precast Meter Vault 11 EA  $    11,500.00  $      6,800.00  $      5,734.00  $             12,800.00  $    13,300.00 
4.19 Furnish and Install 5.5 foot x 8.0 foot Precast Meter Vault 7 EA  $    12,500.00  $      7,700.00  $      6,234.00  $             14,500.00  $    14,300.00 
4.20 Furnish and Install 6.5 foot x 9.0 foot Precast Meter Vault 3 EA  $    13,500.00  $      9,000.00  $      7,050.00  $             15,800.00  $    17,400.00 
4.21 Furnish and Install 5.0 foot x 5.0 foot Precast Meter Vault 5 EA  $    10,500.00  $      5,500.00  $      5,160.00  $             12,200.00  $    10,330.00 
4.22 Furnish and Install 6.0 foot x 6.0 foot Precast Meter Vault 7 EA  $    12,500.00  $      6,900.00  $      5,734.00  $             14,000.00  $    10,260.00 
4.23 Wet Well and Maint. Access Struct. Interior Surface Preparation 10,000 SF  $             2.00  $             3.00  $             2.00  $                      4.00  $             2.45 

4.24
Furnish and Install Wet Well and Maintenance Access Structure Cementitious Coating - 
Brick Structures 2,000 SF  $             9.00  $           16.00  $           10.40  $                    14.00  $           10.65 

4.25
Furnish and Install Wet Well and Maintenance Access Structure Cementitious Coating - 
Precast Structures 7,000 SF  $             5.00  $           15.00  $             5.20  $                    12.00  $             6.33 

4.26 Furnish and Install Wet Well and Maintenance Access Structure Level II Coating 9,000 SF  $             5.00  $           15.00  $             5.20  $                    16.00  $             6.33 
4.27 Furnish and Install Wet Well and Maintenance Access Structure Level III Coating 8,000 SF  $           10.00  $           15.00  $           11.35  $                    20.00  $           11.45 
4.28 Furnish and Install Bituminastic Coating 6,000 SF  $             4.00  $           10.00  $             2.25  $                      5.00  $             2.35 

4.29
Furnish and Install Precast Maintenance Access Structure, 4 foot diameter, 6 feet to 10 feet 
deep

3 EA  $      8,000.00  $      7,500.00  $      8,000.00  $             11,000.00  $      8,000.00 

4.30
Furnish and Install Precast Maintenance Access Structure, 4 foot diameter, 10 feet to 14 feet 
deep

3 EA  $    10,000.00  $      9,200.00  $    14,000.00  $             14,000.00  $    11,500.00 

4.31
Furnish and Install Precast Maintenance Access Structure, 4 foot diameter, 14 feet to 18 feet 
deep

3 EA  $    14,000.00  $    10,400.00  $    30,000.00  $             18,000.00  $    20,000.00 

4.32
Furnish and Install Precast Maintenance Access Structure, 4 foot diameter, over 18 feet 
deep

3 EA  $    15,000.00  $    11,500.00  $    37,800.00  $             24,000.00  $    20,000.00 
4.33 Furnish and Install Reinforced Concrete Slab on Grade (up to 12 inches thick) 160 CY  $         300.00  $         250.00  $         400.00  $                  350.00  $         432.00 
4.34 Furnish and Install Reinforced Formed Concrete 210 CY  $         300.00  $         300.00  $         900.00  $                  525.00  $         600.00 
4.35 Furnish and Install Miscellaneous Unreinforced Formed Concrete 200 CY  $         200.00  $         200.00  $         700.00  $                  330.00  $         300.00 
4.36 Form and Pour Concrete Sidewalk (6 inch thick unreinforced) 500 SY  $           40.00  $           36.00  $           50.00  $                    54.00  $           63.00 
4.37 Furnish and Install Flowable Fill 60 CY  $         200.00  $         155.00  $         155.00  $                  170.00  $         200.00 
4.38 Furnish Concrete Pump 20 HRS  $         300.00  $         125.00  $           50.00  $                  150.00  $         300.00 

SECTION 4 Subtotal 

69,120.00$             
126,000.00$           

60,000.00$             
31,500.00$             
12,000.00$             

6,000.00$               
1,893,270.00$        

21,300.00$             

44,310.00$             
56,970.00$             
91,600.00$             
14,100.00$             
24,000.00$             

34,500.00$             

60,000.00$             

60,000.00$             

8,000.00$               
8,000.00$               
5,500.00$               

146,300.00$           
100,100.00$           

52,200.00$             
51,650.00$             
71,820.00$             
24,500.00$             

133,000.00$           
54,000.00$             

32,000.00$             

34,000.00$             

30,000.00$             
8,000.00$               
8,000.00$               

10,200.00$            
3,000.00$              

2,219,600.00$       

30,000.00$            
33,000.00$            

42,000.00$            

54,000.00$            

72,000.00$            
56,000.00$            

110,250.00$          
66,000.00$            
27,000.00$            

101,500.00$          
47,400.00$            
61,000.00$            
98,000.00$            
40,000.00$            
28,000.00$            

84,000.00$            
144,000.00$          
160,000.00$          

22,400.00$            

26,000.00$            

25,500.00$            
10,000.00$            
10,400.00$            
11,800.00$            
11,800.00$            

3,850.00$              
140,800.00$          

6,000.00$                
1,476,450.00$         

24,000.00$              

30,000.00$              

42,000.00$              

45,000.00$              
48,000.00$              
63,000.00$              
40,000.00$              
20,000.00$              
12,000.00$              

40,500.00$              
52,500.00$              
87,500.00$              
20,000.00$              
18,000.00$              

35,000.00$              
45,000.00$              
80,000.00$              
24,000.00$              

26,800.00$              

20,700.00$              
2,600.00$                
2,800.00$                
3,400.00$                
3,600.00$                

22,000.00$              
126,500.00$            

87,500.00$              

11,400.00$              
1,050.00$                

25,600.00$              

84,000.00$              
54,000.00$              

26,000.00$              

13,300.00$            
1,500.00$              

41,600.00$            
15,000.00$            

210,000.00$          
96,000.00$            

108,000.00$          
157,500.00$          

46,800.00$            

15,000.00$              
105,000.00$            

60,000.00$              
66,000.00$              

11,400.00$             
2,400.00$               

32,000.00$             
14,000.00$             

175,000.00$           
84,000.00$             
96,000.00$             

5,700.00$              
1,500.00$              

57,600.00$            
26,000.00$            
63,000.00$            

16,800.00$            

17,100.00$            
10,400.00$            
10,600.00$            
13,000.00$            

36,000.00$            
54,000.00$            
73,500.00$            
19,800.00$            

13,440.00$            

24,000.00$            

42,000.00$            

25,800.00$            
40,138.00$            
20,000.00$            
20,800.00$            

36,400.00$            

12,000.00$            
5,500.00$              

63,074.00$            
43,638.00$            
21,150.00$            

25,000.00$            
9,300.00$              
1,000.00$              

1,555,740.00$       

11,400.00$               
1,200.00$                 

48,000.00$               
18,000.00$               

105,000.00$             
63,000.00$               
90,000.00$               

122,500.00$             
36,000.00$               

20,000.00$               

22,000.00$               

19,500.00$               

90,000.00$            

113,400.00$          
64,000.00$            

189,000.00$          
140,000.00$          

46,800.00$            
90,800.00$            
13,500.00$            

74,800.00$               
53,900.00$               
27,000.00$               
27,500.00$               
48,300.00$               

6,700.00$                 
7,000.00$                 
8,000.00$                 
9,000.00$                 
3,300.00$                 

60,000.00$               
22,500.00$               

27,600.00$               

31,200.00$               

34,500.00$               

30,000.00$               
32,000.00$               

105,000.00$             
135,000.00$             
120,000.00$             

2,500.00$                 
1,592,700.00$          

40,000.00$               
63,000.00$               
40,000.00$               
18,000.00$               

9,300.00$                 

SECTION 4 - NEW AND REHABILITATED CONCRETE WORK

E
xhibit 1 

P
age 3 of 5

Agenda Page 68



Bid No.  Y1180908B1 Date Bid Posted:   10/30/2013
LIFT STATION REHABILITATION AND REPAIR Date Bid Opened:   12/11/2013
Agency:  Water and Wastewater Services Bid  Submittals:   5
Purchasing Agent: Ilyse S. Valdivia Declinations: 0

Tabulation of Bids

Item No. Commodity Code(s) 91356
Description Qty Unit  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price 

EX Widgets 14 EA  $             1.00  $             1.00  $             1.00  $                      1.00  $             1.00 

 Akerblom Contracting, Inc. 

 2064 S.W. 28 Terrace 

 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 

Total Price
14.00$                    

 Hinterland Group, Inc. 

 5401 N. Haverhill Rd, # 114 

 West Palm Beach, FL 33407 

Total Price
14.00$                   

 Southeastern Engineering 
Contractors, Inc. 

 12054 N.W. 98 Avenue 

 Hialeah Gardens, FL 33018 

 Intercounty Engineering, Inc. 

 1925 N.W. 18 Street 

 Pompano Beach, FL 33069 

Total Price
14.00$                      

Total Price
14.00$                   

 Trio Development Corporation 

 1701 NW 22nd Court 

 Pompano Beach, FL 33069 

Total Price
14.00$                     

5.01 Furnish and Install 4 inch FLG Plug Valve with Stainless Steel Accessories 34 EA  $      2,000.00  $      1,500.00  $         750.00  $               1,400.00  $      1,850.00 
5.02 Furnish and Install 6 inch FLG Plug Valve with Stainless Steel Accessories 16 EA  $      3,000.00  $      1,700.00  $      1,155.00  $               1,900.00  $      2,500.00 
5.03 Furnish and Install 8 inch FLG Plug Valve with Stainless Steel Accessories 12 EA  $      3,200.00  $      2,000.00  $      2,050.00  $               2,400.00  $      3,000.00 
5.04 Furnish and Install 10 inch FLG Plug Valve with Stainless Steel Accessories 5 EA  $      3,500.00  $      2,500.00  $      2,640.00  $               2,800.00  $      3,800.00 
5.05 Furnish and Install 4 inch Check Valve with Stainless Steel Accessories 28 EA  $      3,000.00  $      1,400.00  $      1,570.00  $               2,000.00  $      3,200.00 
5.06 Furnish and Install 6 inch Check Valve with Stainless Steel Accessories 14 EA  $      4,000.00  $      1,800.00  $      1,880.00  $               2,500.00  $      3,570.00 
5.07 Furnish and Install 8 inch Check Valve with Stainless Steel Accessories 12 EA  $      4,500.00  $      2,400.00  $      2,690.00  $               3,200.00  $      4,300.00 
5.08 Furnish and Install 10 inch Check Valve with Stainless Steel Accessories 5 EA  $      4,700.00  $      2,600.00  $      4,187.00  $               4,900.00  $      6,086.00 
5.09 Furnish and Install 4 inch Pump Out Connection 13 EA  $      2,000.00  $      1,500.00  $      1,240.00  $               2,400.00  $         778.00 
5.10 Furnish and Install 6 inch Pump Out Connection 7 EA  $      4,000.00  $      1,900.00  $      1,820.00  $               2,800.00  $         943.00 
5.11 Furnish and Install 4 inch MJ Plug Valve with Accessories 10 EA  $      3,800.00  $      1,500.00  $      1,140.00  $               1,400.00  $      1,908.00 
5.12 Furnish and Install 6 inch MJ Plug Valve with Accessories 8 EA  $      4,000.00  $      1,800.00  $      1,475.00  $               1,700.00  $      2,300.00 
5.13 Furnish and Install 8 inch MJ Plug Valve with Accessories 5 EA  $      4,500.00  $      2,300.00  $      2,240.00  $               2,400.00  $      3,865.00 
5.14 Furnish and Install 10 inch MJ Plug Valve with Accessories 3 EA  $      4,600.00  $      2,800.00  $      3,070.00  $               3,000.00  $      4,800.00 
5.15 Furnish and Install 4 inch Flanged DI Piping 750 LF  $         100.00  $         270.00  $         110.00  $                  150.00  $         180.00 
5.16 Furnish and Install 6 inch Flanged DI Piping 650 LF  $         150.00  $         310.00  $         120.00  $                  170.00  $         170.00 
5.17 Furnish and Install 8 inch Flanged DI Piping 300 LF  $         160.00  $         410.00  $         133.00  $                  200.00  $         250.00 
5.18 Furnish and Install 10 inch Flanged DI Piping 200 LF  $         170.00  $         520.00  $         168.00  $                  230.00  $         350.00 
5.19 Furnish and Install 4 inch MJ Flexible Ball Joint 5 EA  $      1,800.00  $      1,200.00  $      2,675.00  $               3,000.00  $      3,100.00 
5.20 Furnish and Install 6 inch MJ Flexible Ball Joint 7 EA  $      2,700.00  $      2,600.00  $      3,700.00  $               4,200.00  $      3,953.00 
5.21 Furnish and Install 8 inch MJ Flexible Ball Joint 5 EA  $      3,400.00  $      4,500.00  $      4,700.00  $               6,200.00  $      5,984.00 
5.22 Furnish and Install 10 inch MJ Flexible Ball Joint 3 EA  $      4,500.00  $      5,000.00  $      5,820.00  $               7,200.00  $      7,788.00 
5.23 Furnish and Install Pump Base Elbow and County Supplied Pumps (4 inch Discharge) 27 EA $      2,000.00 $      3,000.00  $      5,594.00 $               3,500.00 $      6,800.00 
5.24 Furnish and Install Pump Base Elbow and County Supplied Pumps (6 inch Discharge) 14 EA  $      2,100.00  $      3,500.00  $      6,200.00  $               3,800.00  $      8,800.00 
5.25 Furnish and Install Pump Base Elbow and County Supplied Pumps (8 inch Discharge) 8 EA  $      2,200.00  $      5,700.00  $      6,800.00  $               7,300.00  $      8,000.00 
5.26 Furnish and Install Stainless Steel Float Hanger Bracket 17 EA  $         250.00  $         200.00  $         500.00  $                  400.00  $         300.00 
5.27 Furnish and Install Wet Well Vent 12 EA  $      3,000.00  $         750.00  $      1,300.00  $                  950.00  $      1,459.00 
5.28 Furnish and Install 2 inch Water Service 7 EA  $      3,000.00  $      1,750.00  $      7,285.00  $               3,000.00  $      3,600.00 
5.29 Furnish and Install 2 inch Back Flow Prevention Device 6 EA  $      2,000.00  $      1,500.00  $      2,600.00  $                  900.00  $      3,000.00 
5.30 Furnish and Install 4 inch DIP Mechanical Joint Force Main 400 LF  $           50.00  $           60.00  $           70.00  $                    85.00  $           73.00 
5.31 Furnish and Install 6 inch DIP Mechanical Joint Force Main 700 LF  $           55.00  $           65.00  $           75.00  $                    95.00  $           80.00 
5.32 Furnish and Install 8 inch DIP Mechanical Joint Force Main 250 LF  $           60.00  $           69.00  $           85.00  $                  105.00  $           85.00 
5.33 Furnish and Install 10 inch DIP Mechanical Joint Force Main 60 LF  $           65.00  $           77.00  $           95.00  $                  115.00  $           90.00 
5.34 Furnish and Install MJ DIP Force Main Fittings and Accessories 2970 LBS  $           15.00  $             5.00  $           16.50  $                    15.00  $           12.00 
5.35 Furnish and Install 8 inch PVC Sanitary Sewer  (6 feet - 10 feet deep) 200 LF  $           75.00  $           90.00  $           70.00  $                  130.00  $         110.00 
5.36 Furnish and Install 8 inch PVC Sanitary Sewer (10 feet - 14 feet deep) 250 LF  $         100.00  $         200.00  $         100.00  $                  160.00  $         175.00 
5.37 Furnish and Install 8 inch PVC Sanitary Sewer (14 feet - 18 feet deep) 250 LF  $         150.00  $         277.00  $         150.00  $                  190.00  $         225.00 
5.38 Furnish and Install 10 inch PVC Sanitary Sewer (6 feet - 10 feet deep) 200 LF  $           80.00  $           95.00  $           75.00  $                  140.00  $         110.00 
5.39 Furnish and Install 10 inch PVC Sanitary Sewer (10 feet - 14 feet deep) 200 LF  $         105.00  $         210.00  $         105.00  $                  180.00  $         185.00 
5.40 Furnish and Install 10 inch PVC Sanitary Sewer (14 feet - 18 feet deep) 200 LF  $         155.00  $         288.00  $         160.00  $                  200.00  $         250.00 
5.41 Furnish and Install 10 inch PVC Sanitary Sewer (over 18 feet deep) 60 LF  $         200.00  $         350.00  $         200.00  $                  280.00  $         450.00 
5.42 Furnish and Install Connection to Existing Force Main - 6 inch 13 EA  $      3,000.00  $      2,500.00  $      8,500.00  $               4,700.00  $      4,300.00 
5.43 Furnish and Install Connection to Existing Force Main - 8 inch 6 EA  $      3,200.00  $      3,000.00  $      8,900.00  $               4,800.00  $      4,000.00 
5.44 Furnish and Install Connection to Existing Force Main - 10 inch 3 EA  $      3,400.00  $      3,500.00  $    11,100.00  $               5,000.00  $      4,500.00 
5.45 Furnish and Install Connection to Existing Force Main - 12 inch 3 EA  $      3,600.00  $      4,000.00  $    13,400.00  $               5,200.00  $      4,600.00 
5.46 Furnish and Install 3" PVC Valve Vault Drain Assembly 8 EA  $      3,500.00  $         450.00  $      1,500.00  $               1,500.00  $      3,000.00 
5.47 Furnish and Install Flanged DIP Fittings 8500 LBS  $             7.00  $             6.00  $           15.50  $                    12.00  $           15.50 
5.48 Grout Abandon Lines 220 CY  $         200.00  $         110.00  $         200.00  $                  300.00  $         250.00 
5.49 Furnish and Install Pressure Gauge Assembly 8 EA  $      2,500.00  $      1,000.00  $      1,000.00  $                  950.00  $      1,963.00 

SECTION 5 Subtotal 

131,750.00$           
55,000.00$             
15,704.00$             

2,130,137.00$        

22,000.00$             
37,000.00$             
50,000.00$             
27,000.00$             
55,900.00$             
24,000.00$             
13,500.00$             
13,800.00$             
24,000.00$             

18,000.00$             
29,200.00$             
56,000.00$             
21,250.00$             

5,400.00$               
35,640.00$             
22,000.00$             
43,750.00$             
56,250.00$             

27,671.00$             
29,920.00$             
23,364.00$             

183,600.00$          
123,200.00$           

64,000.00$             
5,100.00$               

17,508.00$             
25,200.00$             

19,080.00$             
18,400.00$             
19,325.00$             
14,400.00$             

135,000.00$           
110,500.00$           

75,000.00$             
70,000.00$             
15,500.00$             

40,000.00$             
36,000.00$             
19,000.00$             
89,600.00$             
49,980.00$             
51,600.00$             
30,430.00$             
10,114.00$             

6,601.00$               

62,900.00$             

61,100.00$            
28,800.00$            
15,000.00$            
15,600.00$            
12,000.00$            

102,000.00$          
66,000.00$            

7,600.00$              
1,771,400.00$       

6,900.00$              
44,550.00$            
26,000.00$            
40,000.00$            
47,500.00$            
28,000.00$            
36,000.00$            
40,000.00$            
16,800.00$            

53,200.00$            
58,400.00$            

6,800.00$              
11,400.00$            
21,000.00$            

5,400.00$              
34,000.00$            
66,500.00$            
26,250.00$            

112,500.00$          
110,500.00$          

60,000.00$            
46,000.00$            
15,000.00$            
29,400.00$            
31,000.00$            
21,600.00$            
94,500.00$           

35,000.00$            
38,400.00$            
24,500.00$            
31,200.00$            
19,600.00$            
14,000.00$            
13,600.00$            
12,000.00$            

9,000.00$              

47,600.00$            
30,400.00$            
28,800.00$            
14,000.00$            
56,000.00$            

19,200.00$              
10,200.00$              
10,800.00$              
28,000.00$              
59,500.00$              
44,000.00$              
20,000.00$              

1,547,000.00$         

44,550.00$              
15,000.00$              
25,000.00$              
37,500.00$              
16,000.00$              
21,000.00$              
31,000.00$              
12,000.00$              
39,000.00$              

17,600.00$              
4,250.00$                

36,000.00$              
21,000.00$              
12,000.00$              
20,000.00$              
38,500.00$              
15,000.00$              

3,900.00$                

97,500.00$              
48,000.00$              
34,000.00$              

9,000.00$                
18,900.00$              
17,000.00$              
13,500.00$              
54,000.00$             
29,400.00$              

54,000.00$              
23,500.00$              
26,000.00$              
28,000.00$              
38,000.00$              
32,000.00$              
22,500.00$              
13,800.00$              
75,000.00$              

68,000.00$              
48,000.00$              
38,400.00$              
17,500.00$              
84,000.00$              
56,000.00$              

51,000.00$               

28,800.00$               
13,000.00$               
19,500.00$               
13,300.00$               
15,000.00$               

27,200.00$               
24,000.00$               
12,500.00$               
39,200.00$               
25,200.00$               

123,000.00$             
104,000.00$             

15,000.00$               
81,000.00$              
49,000.00$               
45,600.00$               

3,400.00$                 

6,000.00$                 
18,200.00$               
22,500.00$               

14,400.00$               
11,500.00$               

8,400.00$                 
202,500.00$             
201,500.00$             

69,250.00$               

40,200.00$            

1,721,018.00$       

54,400.00$            
8,500.00$              

15,600.00$            
50,995.00$            
15,600.00$            

19,000.00$               
42,000.00$               
57,600.00$               
21,000.00$               

17,250.00$               
4,620.00$                 

14,850.00$               
18,000.00$               
50,000.00$               

12,250.00$               
9,000.00$                 

24,000.00$               
45,500.00$               

9,000.00$                 

51,000.00$               
24,200.00$               

8,000.00$                 
1,747,820.00$          

32,500.00$               
18,000.00$               
10,500.00$               
12,000.00$               

3,600.00$                 

82,500.00$            
78,000.00$            
39,900.00$            
33,600.00$            
13,375.00$            

18,480.00$            
24,600.00$            
13,200.00$            
43,960.00$            
26,320.00$            
32,280.00$            
20,935.00$            
16,120.00$            
12,740.00$            
11,400.00$            
11,800.00$            
11,200.00$            

9,210.00$              

25,900.00$            

32,000.00$            
12,000.00$            

110,500.00$          
53,400.00$            
33,300.00$            

37,500.00$            
15,000.00$            
21,000.00$            

28,000.00$            
52,500.00$            
21,250.00$            

5,700.00$              
49,005.00$            
14,000.00$            
25,000.00$            

23,500.00$            
17,460.00$            

151,038.00$         
86,800.00$            

12,000.00$            
131,750.00$          

44,000.00$            
8,000.00$              

SECTION 5 - PIPING AND VALVES

25,500.00$            

E
xhibit 1 

P
age 4 of 5

Agenda Page 69



Bid No.  Y1180908B1 Date Bid Posted:   10/30/2013
LIFT STATION REHABILITATION AND REPAIR Date Bid Opened:   12/11/2013
Agency:  Water and Wastewater Services Bid  Submittals:   5
Purchasing Agent: Ilyse S. Valdivia Declinations: 0

Tabulation of Bids

Item No. Commodity Code(s) 91356
Description Qty Unit  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price  Unit Price 

EX Widgets 14 EA  $             1.00  $             1.00  $             1.00  $                      1.00  $             1.00 

 Akerblom Contracting, Inc. 

 2064 S.W. 28 Terrace 

 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 

Total Price
14.00$                    

 Hinterland Group, Inc. 

 5401 N. Haverhill Rd, # 114 

 West Palm Beach, FL 33407 

Total Price
14.00$                   

 Southeastern Engineering 
Contractors, Inc. 

 12054 N.W. 98 Avenue 

 Hialeah Gardens, FL 33018 

 Intercounty Engineering, Inc. 

 1925 N.W. 18 Street 

 Pompano Beach, FL 33069 

Total Price
14.00$                      

Total Price
14.00$                   

 Trio Development Corporation 

 1701 NW 22nd Court 

 Pompano Beach, FL 33069 

Total Price
14.00$                     

6.01 Remove Existing Control Panel and appurtenances 6 EA  $      3,500.00  $         350.00  $         660.00  $                  500.00  $      2,000.00 
6.02 Remove Existing Electric Meter and appurtenances 4 EA  $      3,500.00  $         200.00  $         220.00  $                  180.00  $      2,000.00 
6.03 Relocate Existing Control Panel (up to 30 feet) 2 EA  $    12,000.00  $      2,000.00  $      8,700.00  $               6,000.00  $      4,000.00 
6.04 Relocate Existing Electric Meter (up to 30 feet) 2 EA  $      5,000.00  $      1,500.00  $      2,590.00  $               2,000.00  $      4,000.00 
6.05 Install County Supplied Control Panel and appurtenances - up to 10 HP 8 EA  $    14,000.00  $      2,100.00  $      1,800.00  $               4,500.00  $      7,000.00 
6.06 Install County Supplied Control Panel and appurtenances- over 10 HP to 20 HP 3 EA $    15,000.00 $      2,300.00  $      2,700.00 $               5,500.00 $      8,000.00 
6.07 Install County Supplied Control Panel and appurtenances- over 20 HP to 40 HP 3 EA $    15,100.00 $      2,500.00  $      3,800.00 $               7,500.00 $      9,000.00 
6.08 Install County Supplied Control Panel and appurtenances - 50 HP to 100 HP 1 EA $    15,200.00 $      2,800.00  $      5,150.00 $             11,000.00 $    15,000.00 
6.09 Furnish and Install 3/4 inch Bubbler System Piping, Fittings and Appurtenances 15 EA  $      3,000.00  $      1,000.00  $      9,450.00  $               5,500.00  $      3,000.00 
6.10 Furnish and Install Connection/Isolation Panel 9 EA $      5,000.00 $      1,500.00  $      4,850.00 $               4,500.00 $      6,000.00 
6.11 Furnish and Install 200 AMP Electrical Service to Lift Station 700 LF $           70.00 $           25.00  $           75.00 $                    90.00 $         100.00 
6.12 Furnish and Install 400 AMP Electrical Service to Lift Station 700 LF  $           80.00  $           30.00  $           98.00  $                  110.00  $         100.00 
6.13 Furnish and Install County Supplied 200A Emergency Connection/Transfer Panel 8 EA $      1,500.00 $      1,750.00  $      8,826.00 $               1,500.00 $      4,500.00 
6.14 Furnish and Install County Supplied 400A Emergency Connection/Transfer Panel 8 EA $      2,000.00 $      2,000.00  $    12,600.00 $               2,000.00 $      4,500.00 
6.15 Furnish and Install Temporary Electrical Service 8 EA $      2,500.00 $      2,000.00  $      8,826.00 $               4,800.00 $      3,500.00 
6.16 Furnish and Install Temporary Control Panel 8 EA $      2,000.00 $      3,000.00  $    17,250.00 $               8,500.00 $      3,000.00 
6.17 Furnish and Install 3 inch Aluminum Conduit 450 LF  $           10.00  $           65.00  $           40.00  $                    60.00  $           40.00 
6.18 Furnish and Install 2 inch Aluminum Conduit 450 LF  $             7.00  $           60.00  $           33.00  $                    50.00  $           40.00 
6.19 Furnish and Install 1-1/2 inch Aluminum Conduit 650 LF  $             5.00  $           55.00  $           19.00  $                    40.00  $             7.00 
6.20 Furnish and Install 1 inch Aluminum Conduit 450 LF  $             4.00  $           50.00  $           23.00  $                    30.00  $           12.00 
6.21 Furnish and Install 2 inch PVC Conduit 200 LF  $             4.00  $           20.00  $           31.00  $                    30.00  $           10.00 
6.22 Furnish and Install 1 inch PVC Conduit 200 LF  $             2.00  $           18.00  $           29.00  $                    30.00  $           10.00 
6.23 Furnish and Install 2 inch Aluminum Pole for SCADA Antenna (max 20 feet) 5 EA  $      2,000.00  $         450.00  $         480.00  $               1,600.00  $      2,300.00 

SECTION 6 Subtotal 
Total Bid Price

AWD
AWD = Recommended for Award

Date prepared: 12/17/2013
Prepared by: Sterling A. Osborne

36,000.00$            
28,000.00$            

6,475,657.00$        

24,000.00$            
18,000.00$             
18,000.00$             

4,550.00$               
5,400.00$               
2,000.00$               
2,000.00$               

11,500.00$             
582,450.00$           

56,000.00$             
24,000.00$            
27,000.00$            
15,000.00$            
45,000.00$             
54,000.00$            
70,000.00$            
70,000.00$             
36,000.00$            

12,000.00$             
8,000.00$               
8,000.00$               
8,000.00$               

22,500.00$            
26,000.00$            
13,500.00$            

6,000.00$              
6,000.00$              
8,000.00$              

612,120.00$          
5,957,560.00$       

82,500.00$            
40,500.00$           
63,000.00$           
77,000.00$            
12,000.00$           
16,000.00$           
38,400.00$           
68,000.00$           
27,000.00$            

3,000.00$              
720.00$                 

12,000.00$            
4,000.00$              

36,000.00$            
16,500.00$           
22,500.00$           
11,000.00$           

4,477,000.00$         

16,000.00$             
4,500.00$                
3,150.00$                
3,250.00$                
1,800.00$                

800.00$                   

21,000.00$              
14,000.00$              
24,000.00$              
10,000.00$              

112,000.00$            
45,000.00$             

400.00$                   
10,000.00$              

569,400.00$            

45,300.00$             
15,200.00$             
45,000.00$              
45,000.00$             
49,000.00$             
56,000.00$              
12,000.00$             
16,000.00$             
20,000.00$             

14,000.00$              
16,000.00$              
16,000.00$              

6,900.00$                
7,500.00$                
2,800.00$                

15,000.00$               
13,500.00$              

2,100.00$                 
800.00$                    

4,000.00$                 
3,000.00$                 

16,800.00$               

17,500.00$              
21,000.00$               

4,000.00$                 
3,600.00$                 
2,250.00$                 

305,250.00$             
5,109,225.00$          

24,000.00$              
29,250.00$               
27,000.00$               
35,750.00$               
22,500.00$               

3,960.00$              
880.00$                 

17,400.00$            

138,000.00$         
18,000.00$            
14,850.00$            

141,750.00$          
43,650.00$           
52,500.00$           
68,600.00$            
70,608.00$           

5,180.00$              
14,400.00$            

8,100.00$             
11,400.00$           

5,150.00$             

SECTION 6 - ELECTRICAL WORK

Abbreviations: CY= Cubic Yard   SF = Square Foot  SY= Square Yard  EA = Each  VF = Vertical Foot  LF = Linear Foot  HRS = 
Hours LBS = Pounds   TN = Ton  
CF = Cubic Foot

6,200.00$              

822,936.00$          
5,396,529.00$       

12,350.00$            
10,350.00$            

5,800.00$              
2,400.00$              

100,800.00$         
70,608.00$           

E
xhibit 1 

P
age 5 of 5

Agenda Page 70



Agenda Page 71



Agenda Page 72



Agenda Page 73



Agenda Page 74



Agenda Page 75



Agenda Page 76



Agenda Page 77



Agenda Page 78



Agenda Page 79



Agenda Page 80



Agenda Page 81



Agenda Page 82



Agenda Page 83



Agenda Page 84



Agenda Page 85



Agenda Page 86



Agenda Page 87



Agenda Page 88



Agenda Page 89



Agenda Page 90



Agenda Page 91



Agenda Page 92



Agenda Page 93



Agenda Page 94



Agenda Page 95



Agenda Page 96



Agenda Page 97



Agenda Page 98



Agenda Page 99



Agenda Page 100



Agenda Page 101



Agenda Page 102



Agenda Page 103



Agenda Page 104



Agenda Page 105



Agenda Page 106



Agenda Page 107



Agenda Page 108



Agenda Page 109



Agenda Page 110



Agenda Page 111



Agenda Page 112



Agenda Page 113



Agenda Page 114



Agenda Page 115



Agenda Page 116



Agenda Page 117



Agenda Page 118



Agenda Page 119



Agenda Page 120



Agenda Page 121



Agenda Page 122



Agenda Page 123



Agenda Page 124



Agenda Page 125



Agenda Page 126



Agenda Page 127



Agenda Page 128



Agenda Page 129



Agenda Page 130



Agenda Page 131



Agenda Page 132



Agenda Page 133



Agenda Page 134



Agenda Page 135



Agenda Page 136



Agenda Page 137



Agenda Page 138



Agenda Page 139



Agenda Page 140



Agenda Page 141



Agenda Page 142



Agenda Page 143



Agenda Page 144



Agenda Page 145



Agenda Page 146



Agenda Page 147



Agenda Page 148



Agenda Page 149



Agenda Page 150



Agenda Page 151



Agenda Page 152



Agenda Page 153



Agenda Page 154



Agenda Page 155



Agenda Page 156



Agenda Page 157



Agenda Page 158



Agenda Page 159



Agenda Page 160



Agenda Page 161



Agenda Page 162



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eighth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 163



 

 

 

 
 

 From the desk of:  
Denise J. Ganz, Esq. 

One Boca Place, Suite 400-E  
2255 Glades Road 

 Boca Raton, Florida 33431 
Phone: 561.994.2212 

Fax: 561.997.8494 
Direct Phone: 954.527.2410 

Direct Fax: 954.333.4010 
Email: denise.ganz@gmlaw.com 

 
March 29, 2016 

 

Board of Supervisors  
Coral Springs Improvement District 
 
 

Re: Bond Counsel Representation of Coral Springs Improvement District (the 
“District”) in connection with the District’s proposed Water and Sewer Refunding 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 (the “2016 Bonds”) 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 Thank you for your consideration of this firm as bond counsel to the District in 
connection with the 2016 Bonds. This letter will set forth the basis on which we are prepared to 
render these services to the District. It is our understanding that the current plan is to privately 
place the 2016 Bonds with a financial institution.  
 

In our capacity as bond counsel, our primary responsibility will be to render an objective 
legal opinion with respect to the authorization and issuance of the 2016 Bonds.  As bond counsel, 
we will examine applicable law, prepare the appropriate documents authorizing and securing the 
2016 Bonds and other necessary documents, consult with the parties to the transaction prior to 
the issuance of the 2016 Bonds, review certified proceedings, and undertake such additional 
duties as we deem necessary to render the opinion. 
 

Assuming completion of the proceedings to our satisfaction, we will render our opinion, 
subject to customary assumptions and limitations, that: 
 

 (i) The District is an independent special district and unit of local 
government organized and existing under the laws of the State of Florida with the 
power to adopt the general bond resolution, as supplemented (the “Bond 
Resolution”) relating to the 2016 Bonds and to perform its obligations thereunder 
and to issue the 2016 Bonds;     

 
 (ii) The Bond Resolution has been duly adopted by the District and 
create a valid lien on the funds or assets pledged thereby for the security of the 
2016 Bonds and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the District 
enforceable against the District in accordance with its terms;

Agenda Page 164



Board of Supervisors 
Coral Springs Improvement District 

March 29, 2016 

Page 2 
 

 
 
 (iii) The issuance and sale of the 2016 Bonds has been authorized by 
the District and upon proper execution and authentication, the 2016 Bonds 
constitute valid and binding obligations of the District payable in accordance 
with, and as limited by, the terms of the Bond Resolution; 

 
 (iv) The interest paid on the 2016 Bonds will be excluded from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for 
purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed upon individuals and 
corporations. 
 

          Our opinion as bond counsel will be executed and delivered on the date the 2016 Bonds 
are exchanged for their purchase price and will be based on facts and laws existing as of its date.  
Upon delivery of such opinion, our responsibilities as bond counsel will be concluded with 
respect to the 2016 Bonds. Specifically, but without limitation, we do not undertake (unless 
separately engaged) to provide continuing advice to the District or any other party concerning 
any actions necessary to assure that interest paid on the 2016 Bonds will continue to be excluded 
from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 
 

In rendering our opinion as bond counsel, we will rely upon the certified proceedings and 
other certifications of public officials and other persons furnished to us without undertaking to 
verify the same by independent investigation.  We do not review the financial condition of the 
District, the feasibility of any project to be refinanced by proceeds of the 2016 Bonds, or the 
adequacy of the security provided to owners of the 2016 Bonds and will express no opinion 
relating thereto. 

 
In performing services as bond counsel, our client will be the District and we will 

represent its interests.  We assume that other parties to the transaction will retain such counsel as 
they deem necessary and appropriate to represent their interests in any transaction.  Our 
representation of the District does not alter our responsibility to render an objective opinion as 
bond counsel. We will engage the law firm of McCarter and English, LLP, at our expense, as our 
special tax counsel to review matters relating to Federal tax law in connection with the 2016 
Bonds. 
 

We will charge a flat fee of $50,000, plus our actual out-of-pocket costs, in connection 
with our bond counsel services. Our fees for services rendered will be paid at the closing and 
delivery of the 2016 Bonds, out of such bond proceeds. 

 
If the foregoing is acceptable to you, please have the appropriate officer of the District 

indicate the District’s acknowledgment and acceptance thereof in the space provided for that 
purpose on the enclosed photocopy of this letter.  Such execution will evidence the District’s

Agenda Page 165



Board of Supervisors 
Coral Springs Improvement District 

March 29, 2016 

Page 3 

 
retention of Greenspoon Marder, P.A. as bond counsel upon the terms and conditions set forth 
herein. 

 
If you have any questions or comments concerning the foregoing, please do not hesitate 

to contact the undersigned. 
 

      Very truly yours, 
 
        
        
       Denise J. Ganz 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THE FOREGOING IS AGREED AND 

ACCEPTED THIS ___ DAY 

OF__________, 2016. 

 

Coral Springs Improvement District 

 

 

By:         

 
Title:         
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
13710456.2 

 

 

Agenda Page 166



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ninth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 167



 

00378972-3  Page 1 of 3 
 

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Temporary Construction Easement Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into 

this ______ day of __________________, 2016 (the “Effective Date”) by and between Clublink 

US Corporation, a Delaware corporation, successor by merger to Clublink Eagle Trace, LLC 

whose mailing address is 2600 Palm Aire Drive North, Pompano Beach, Florida  33069 and the 

Coral Springs Improvement District, a Florida independent special district, whose mailing 

address is 10300 NW 11th Manor, Coral Springs, FL  33071 with reference to the following 

recitals of fact: 

A.  Grantor is the owner of a property for which the Grantee provides surface water 

management services. 

B. Grantee is undertaking improvements to its water management system and finds it 

necessary to provide lake bank stabilization improvements to properties owned or controlled by 

Grantee and/or other parties.  In order to construct such improvements, Grantee will need to 

utilize the staging area and construction traffic route as shown on Figure 2. 

C. Grantee has agreed to build such bank stabilization improvements on Grantor’s and 

Grantee’s properties. 

D. Grantee has requested that Grantor provide a temporary construction easement to Grantee 

for the purpose of constructing such bank restoration improvements on Grantor’s and/or other 

parties’ property. 

E. Grantor and Grantee are entering into this Agreement to temporarily permit construction 

activities by Grantee to occur within the area of Grantor’s property as shown on Figure 1 and 

Figure 2 in order to complete the improvements and to establish the terms and conditions thereof. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement, Grantor and Grantee agree as follows: 

1. Recitals.  The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and shall form a part of this 

Agreement. 

2. Grant of Easement.  Grantor hereby grants and conveys unto Grantee a temporary 

construction easement to enter upon that portion of Grantor’s real property described in Figure 2 

attached hereto (the "Easement"), for the purpose of constructing the  lake bank stabilization 

improvements described herein upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

3.  Conditions of Construction in Easement.  The cost of site approval, permitting, 

construction and maintenance of the improvements shall be the sole responsibility of Grantee. 

Grantee will provide construction plans to Grantor for review and approval, which shall not be 

unreasonably withheld.  Grantee agrees that the improvements will be constructed in a 

professional manner, and will comply with all applicable laws and regulations applicable to 

construction of the improvements and that all work shall be performed in such a manner that 

existing adjacent improvements will be left in same or like condition. Grantee will give Grantor 

Agenda Page 168



 

00378972-3  Page 2 of 3 
 

at least fifteen (15) days notice prior to commencing initial construction of the improvements, 

and will diligently pursue construction of the improvements to completion.  

4. Term.  The Temporary Construction Easement shall be for a term of ninety (90) days 

from the effective date, which is defined herein as the day and year first above written. 

5. Insurance.  Grantee agrees to obtain and continue at all times during the term of this 

Agreement a minimum of $1,000,000 insurance coverage for loss, damage, injury, or death 

arising from Grantee's construction activities within the Easement.  Grantor shall be named as an 

additional insured. Grantee will provide Grantor with proof of such insurance prior to the 

Effective Date. 

6. Indemnification.  To the extent permitted by law, Grantee hereby agrees to indemnify 

Grantor and to hold Grantor harmless against all claims, demands, losses, damages or injury to 

personal property resulting from Grantee's construction, use and occupancy of the Easement. 

7. Damage to Grantor’s Property.  Grantee shall not damage Grantor's property or 

improvements except as may be reasonably necessary to use the Easement for its intended 

purpose. Any unreasonable damage to Grantor's property or improvements shall be repaired by 

Grantee at Grantee's sole expense. 

8. Warranty of Title.  Grantor hereby covenants and warrants that it is lawfully seized of the 

land where the Easement is located, that it has right and lawful authority to grant and convey the 

Easement to Grantee, and that it will defend the Easement against the lawful claims of all 

persons whomsoever. 

9. Nonexclusive Easement.  The easement, rights, and privileges granted by this Agreement 

are nonexclusive, and Grantor reserves the right to grant or convey other easements or allow 

other uses that do not substantially conflict with Grantees use. 

10. Reserved Rights of Grantor.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this 

Agreement, Grantor reserves and shall continue to enjoy the use of the Easement area for any use 

and all purposes which do not interfere with or prevent the use of tile Easement by Grantee for 

its intended purpose.  Grantee agrees that nothing in this easement shall be construed to prevent 

the Grantor from continuing to use the Easement area as part of a golf course, including, without 

limitation, maintaining, repairing, replacing and/or relocating golf cart paths and related 

improvements located within the Easement area, and Grantee shall not use the easement in any 

way to unreasonably interfere with the use of the property as a golf course. 

11. Binding Effect.  This instrument shall he binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 

parties hereto, their respective successors, transferees, and assigns. It is the expressed intent of 

the parties hereto that the Easement created by this Agreement shall run with the land. 

12. Florida Law; Severability.  This agreement shall be construed and enforced pursuant to 

Florida Law. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, 

such provision shall be severed from the remaining provisions of this Agreement and the 

remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable. 

Agenda Page 169



 

00378972-3  Page 3 of 3 
 

13. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties 

regarding the subject matter hereof. Any prior agreements, representations, understandings, and 

oral statements regarding the subject matter of this Agreement are merged herein and shall be of 

no further force or affect between the parties. 

14. Headings.  The paragraph headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and do 

not affect the meaning or scope of the provisions which follow them. 

15. Legal Fees.  Grantee agrees to reimburse Grantor for all legal fees and costs incurred by 

Grantor to negotiate this Agreement, not to exceed $1,000.00.  Grantor shall provide Grantee 

reasonable evidence of the attorneys fees and costs incurred by Grantor. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee have caused this Agreement to be executed as 

of the day and year first above written. 

GRANTOR: 

CLUBLINK US CORPORATION, a Delaware 

Corporation, successor by merger to Clublink Eagle 

Trace, LLC 

By:_______________________________________ 

ATTEST: __________________________________ 

GRANTEE: 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

By:_______________________________________ 

Print Name: ________________________________ 

Its: _______________________________________ 

Agenda Page 170



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tenth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 171



 

 

 

 

 

10B. 
  

Agenda Page 172



Agenda Page 173



Agenda Page 174



Agenda Page 175



Agenda Page 176



Agenda Page 177



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10C. 
  

Agenda Page 178



Agenda Page 179



Agenda Page 180



Agenda Page 181



Agenda Page 182



Agenda Page 183



Agenda Page 184



Agenda Page 185



Agenda Page 186



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10D 

Agenda Page 187



Agenda Page 188



Agenda Page 189



Agenda Page 190



Agenda Page 191



Agenda Page 192



Agenda Page 193



Agenda Page 194



Agenda Page 195



Agenda Page 196



Agenda Page 197



Agenda Page 198



Agenda Page 199



Agenda Page 200



Agenda Page 201



Agenda Page 202



Agenda Page 203



Agenda Page 204



Agenda Page 205



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eleventh Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 206



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11B. 
  

Agenda Page 207



Globaltech, Inc. 

CSID Engineer’s Report 

April 7, 2016 

 

 

PROJECTS UNDER CONTRACT 

 

WA # 98 Storm Water Site Development Criteria – In progress 
 Workshop with Board was conducted on March 22, 2016.  Criteria is moving forward for approval.   

 
WA #101 Well 4R and 7R Construction – In closeout 

 Addressing closeout punch list.  Repaired loose pump coupling for well 7R.  Both wells are up and 

running.   

 
WA #106 – Lime Plant Demolition Design – In progress 

 Draft report submitted to staff.  Review meeting on report conducted with staff.  Updating cost from 

vendors.  Revising report to finalize.  Preparing WA based on meeting comments. 

 
WA #107 – WTP Four-Log BCHD Submittal – In closeout 

 Met with BCHD and staff to review monitoring requirements for Provisional Approval of 4-log virus 

treatment issued on March 11, 2016.  BCHD in consensus with staff rescinded the Provisional Approval.  

BCHD has issued a draft requirement for review.  We have reviewed draft with staff and have sent 

comments back to BCHD.  Awaiting BCHD response to comments.   
  

WA #108 – HSPs 5 and 6 Pump and Motor Installation – In progress 

 Ordered new motor frame for HSP 6 after the old frame was discovered to be in poor condition.  Awaiting 

new motor frame to be fabricated and delivered to site.   

 Extended electrical wiring/conduit for both HSP 5 and 6.  Started up HSP 5 with new pump and old motor.  

Assisting staff with ground fault error on VFD.   

 
WA #109 – WWTP Blower Study - In progress 

 Preparing draft report.  
 

WA #110 – Degasifier Cleaning Pump - In progress 

 Awaiting delivery of pump and trailer – Anticipated delivery early May.  Electric power installation in 

progress.   
 

WA #112 – Canal Bank Restoration of Site 9 

 Conducted field work.  Evaluating restoration options and preparing Report of Findings. 
 

WA #113 – Canal Bank Restoration of Site 1A 

 Tentative start date to begin construction of May 3, 2016 agreed up with golf course.  Preparing users 

agreement with Club Link (golf course).   
 
 

PROJECTS PENDING 

 WA# 114 – Reuse Letter Report - Submitted to staff.  Awaiting approval 

 WA #___ – Effluent Pump Station Electrical Improvements – Submitted to staff.  Awaiting approval 

 WA #___ – Margate interconnect –WA drafted and to be submitted to staff.   

 WA# ___ - Lime Plant Demolition – WA to be drafted.  

Agenda Page 208



11C

Agenda Page 209



Coral Springs Improvement District

Utility Billing Work Orders

2016 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 28 32 25 85

Mis-Reads 5 3 2 10

Meter Calibration Tests 0 0 0 0

2015 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 40 27 33 33 43 43 40 37 296

Mis-Reads 4 2 0 0 0 1 0 3 10

Meter Calibration Tests 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

2014 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 33 43 45 60 50 73 45 52 47 43 51 52 594

Mis-Reads 7 5 8 5 3 9 4 2 0 6 3 3 55

Meter Calibration Tests 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Agenda Page 210



Coral Springs Improvement District  

Utilities Update  

April 2016 Board Meeting  

 
  
 
Phosphate Biocatalyst Testing  
Update remains same. Additional testing continues at the Mobile Alabama plant. . This additional pilot 
testing is expected to be completed by late May to early June. Once this is completed Harold will set up 
a meeting with us and the project head from John Hopkins University to discuss the results and further 
testing. 
 
Generator Diesel Spill Clean Up  
URS has completed installation of the vapor extraction system. The system was started up on 18th  
March. Initial air sampling indicates that the system is removing petroleum vapor from the soil and 
working as designed. Wastewater staff is monitoring the system daily and a weekly inspection are 
carried out by URS and Broward County. Groundwater sampling is scheduled for 18th June. 
 
Margate Interconnect 
Globaltech continues to develop pricing for project. Margate has been updated on progress. 
 
Meetings with Humberto 
Weekly collective meeting with the Department managers are being held on Thursdays. The decision has 
been made to institute the 5S process as the start of a continuous improvement process at CSID. A 
schedule for the implementation of this process has been developed and the managers are instituting it 
with their employees. Managers are also meeting individually with Humberto on a biweekly basis as part 
of a mentoring process. 
 

Agenda Page 211



                                                       

                                April Report to Board of Directors for Water Plant 

                                    Report includes updates through 4/7/2016 

 

Well 8 flow meter 

The flow meter on well #8 has failed and needs to be replaced. We obtained three quotes for 

an identical ABB brand replacement. The three prices came in at $2,900, $3,375, and $3,889. 

We have selected AWC with a price of $2,900 and have placed the order. The rep has been kind 

enough to be onsite for startup at no additional cost. Our maintenance dept. has stated that 

they can install the new meter when it arrives. 

High service pump #’s 5 and 6 

High service pump #5 has been installed and aligned. We are experiencing issues with keeping 

the motor running and are in the process of troubleshooting it. The decision was made to utilize 

the old motor. It is our belief that the motor may have some condensation in it from sitting and 

not being run for so long. We have placed heaters on it and are testing it every other day. Each 

time we run it it runs longer before it trips the VFD. 

The pedestal that was approved at the last board meeting for high service pump #6 has been 

ordered and is due in by 4/15 and will be installed by 4/19 according to Globaltech. We have 

also placed a heater on #6’s motor in hopes of evaporating any condensation that may have 

developed in it while sitting. 

Flow meter on the transfer pump station 

We have been troubleshooting this meter for some time with different instrument tech’s. After 

discussing the issue with Globaltech we decided to check the grounding which was thought to 

be the issue. The grounding was found to be ok. There was also thought that the meter may 

have scaling in it from the chemicals which are fed into the line upstream of the meter. 

Globaltech began discussing moving the chemical injection points to downstream of the meter. 

Agenda Page 212



On 4/6 staff pulled the meter and found no scaling inside. This saved us from going to a Work 

Authorization with Globaltech which would have included relocating our post treatment 

chemical injection points, as well as the meter and possibly static mixer. We now feel the meter 

needs to be replaced. We will begin taking the steps towards acquiring a new meter which staff 

will install. 

Four Log Virus Inactivation Certification 

After meeting with the Broward County Health Department we were able to negotiate reducing 

some of the original conditions they had in their certification. We received their revised 

certification and have responded with a couple of questions mostly for verification purposes. 

When we hear back we will begin making the necessary modifications and training staff on the 

new monitoring requirements. Once everything is in place we will provide them with an official 

start date and from then on we will be one of 12 four log certified plants in Broward County. 

There are 89 drinking water plants in Broward County.  

Lime Plant Demo Report From Globaltech 

We have received Globaltechs draft TM on the Lime Plant demolition recommendations. We 

have met with them to discuss the three options they have presented and have asked them to 

make some minor adjustments. Once the report is finished it will be presented to the board for 

discussion. 

Main Generator Repair 

A relay that controls the block heater for our generator failed and needed to be replaced. We 

acquired a quote from OK generator to make the repair and it came in at $950. After doing a 

little research we were able to have one of our technicians make the repair for $170 which of 

course generated a cost savings of $780. 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 213



 Coral Springs Improvement District 

Wastewater Department Report 

April 2016 Board Meeting 

 

 

 

Ongoing Projects  
 

Globaltech has notified the District that they are progressing with the following approved work 

authorizations (WA):  

 

 WA # 109 – Wastewater Treatment Plant Blower Study.  Staff is awaiting the blower 

study report.  

 

Operations 
 

 

Plant E is being taken offline for annual maintenance.  

 Staff is preparing Plant E to be put back online.   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 214



Coral Springs Improvement District 

BOARD MEETING 

 

Stormwater Dept.  

4/18/2016 

 

 

 A pump has been removed from Station #2 for 

rehabilitation work. Replacement of the diffuser guide blade 

assembly is needed, this is outside the scope of work 

previously authorized by the Board of Supervisors 

 

 Semi-annual canal inspection activity is progressing The 

East basin is about 65% complete. 

 

 District stormwater operations performed well during 

recent heavy rain events. Our system was well prepared to 

handle these amounts, and we did without any issues. 

Significant street ponding was observed due to leaves and 

debris covering some street drains. The street drains are the 

responsibility of the city. 

Agenda Page 215



 

Coral Springs Improvement District’s Water Distribution and Wastewater Collection 

Department Report  

4-18-16 board Meeting  

 

 

 

  

* There were 26 water breaks in the month of March, one force main break due to contractor damage   

 

* Madsen Barr has started the Valve exercise and assessment program.     

* The field department has completed a small scale study to determine the effectiveness of an acoustic  

    Leak detection program. We have determined that it is necessary to add an additional study site. Which  

    Will probably be started before this meeting.   

 

*   Lift Station 20 has been identified as needing emergency rehab based on its current condition. A quote  

     Of 89,914.77 was submitted by TRIO DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION as a piggyback to Ft. Lauderdale’s   

      Contract #Y1180908B1. This quote includes some contingencies      

        

 

* Our annual Cross Connection Control Survey has continued smoothly in its first phase, evaluating  

   Commercial water connections. We are looking to start residential evaluations by next month.  

 

* Auto nation ford furnished to us a quote for a new f-250 HD utility truck in the amount of 33,733.00 

    Duval ford, who has the state contract, will be quoting me as well. I hope to have that quote by     

    This meeting.   

  

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 216



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCIALS  

Agenda Page 217



Agenda Page 218



Agenda Page 219



Agenda Page 220



Agenda Page 221



Agenda Page 222



Agenda Page 223



Agenda Page 224



Agenda Page 225



Agenda Page 226



Agenda Page 227



Agenda Page 228



Agenda Page 229



Agenda Page 230



Agenda Page 231



Agenda Page 232



Agenda Page 233



Agenda Page 234



Agenda Page 235



Agenda Page 236



Agenda Page 237



Agenda Page 238



Agenda Page 239



Agenda Page 240



Agenda Page 241



Agenda Page 242



Agenda Page 243



Agenda Page 244



Agenda Page 245


	Board Letter
	Minutes
	4th - Permit Criteria Manual
	5th - Recognition of District Staff
	6A - Trio Development for LS 20
	8th - Greenspoon Marder
	9th - Temporary Construction Easement Agreement
	10B - Work Authorization 108.1
	10C - Work Authorization 114
	10D - Work Authorization 115
	11B - Engineer's Report
	11C - Work Orders
	11C - Utilities Update
	11C - Water Report
	11C - Wastewater Report
	11C - Stormwater Report
	11C - Field Report
	Financials

